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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Thousands of US$)
Note December 31, 2012
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 7 1,742,196
Intangible assets — Goodwill 8 55,520
Intangible assets — Other 9 2,169,853
Financial investments 10 71,270
Trade and other receivables 12 1,810,795
Deferred income tax assets 19 212,010
Derivative financial instruments 11 -
6,061,644
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 6,957
Trade and other receivables 12 788,279
Derivative financial instruments 11 2,242
Financial investments 10 35,986
Cash and cash equivalents 13 356,355
1,189,819
Total assets 7,251,463

Notes 1 to 33 and Appendixes | and Il form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

Note December 31, 2012
EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share Capital 14 4,080
Share Premium 14 1,611,864
Accumulated losses (24,359)
Carrying value adjustments (5565,217)
Hedging reserve 11 (82,536)
Cumulative translation differences 15 (3,398)
Other Carrying value adjustments 14 (469,283)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 1,036,368
Non-controlling interests 16 298,344
Total Equity 1,334,712
LIABILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 18 3,514,249
Derivative financial instruments 11 232,161
Deferred income tax liabilities 19 90,037
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 20 14,506
Trade and other payables 17 750,592
4,601,545
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 17 699,744
Current income tax liabilities 26 -
Borrowings 18 504,976
Derivative financial instruments 1 30,130
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 20 80,356
1,315,206
Total Liabilities 5,916,751
Total Equity and liabilities 7,251,463

Notes 1 to 33 and Appendixes | and Il form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED BETWEEN JUNE 13
AND DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Thousands of US$)
Accumulated for the
current period
13.06.2012 to
Note 31.12.2012
Operating Income 155,392
Revenue / Sales 21andé6 163,870
Other operating income 23 1,622
Operating expenditure (138,796)
Materials consumed and other external costs 22 (97,557)
Employee benefit expense 24 (7,404)
Other operating expenses 23 (8,409)
Amortization, depreciation and impairment losses 7Tand 9 (25,4286)
Operating results 16,596
Financial expenses 25 (72,619)
Financial income 25 6,187
Net gains / (losses) on foreign currency transactions 25 7,279
Net financial results (59,153)
Loss before income tax (42,557)
Income tax 26 9,561
Loss for the period (32,996)

Attributable to:

Parent company shareholders (24,359)
Non controlling interests 16 (8,637)

Notes 1 to 33 and Appendixes | and Il form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
COMPRISED BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Thousands of US$)

Accumulated for the
current period
13.06.2012 to
Note 31.12.2012
Loss for the period (32,996)

Other comprehensive income
Changes due to financial statements translation (904)
Fair value changes in cash flow hedges (25,444)
- Tax effect 19 7,633
Cash flow hedge transferred to profit and loss 6,085
- Tax effect 19 (1,826)
Net cash flow hedges (13,552)
Comprehensive income for year attributable to: (47,452)
Parent’s shareholders (32,994)
Non controlling interest (14,458)

Notes 1 to 33 and Appendixes | and Il form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



"SjUSLLBIEIS |BIDUBUY PRJEPIIOSUOD palepjosuos asay) jo Hed [eibajul ue wuoy || pue | sexipuaddy pue £¢ 03 | SSION

ZLL'PEE'L | vPE'EEE gog'eco’lL | (e8Z's9v) (ses'zg) | (86g's) (ese'vZ) |¥98'L19°) |080'F ZIL0Z 4aquwasag L Je aouejeg
Z8L'LLe' L [ 8E£8'l0E ¥re'690't | (eszZ'sov) (e6Z'LL) |- - +98°' 1191 | Z90'F adoas
uonepijosuod ay} o) ucjedodioosu)
Y96’y 796V - - - B = - - SJUSLWBADL JBLO
(Zsv'iv) (85t'¥ L) (re6'ze) E {£ez's) |(sBE'E) (ese've} | - B awooul ansuayaidwos [e3o]
(951" v (Lza's) {gcag) - (£ez'c) |(s6e'e) - = = alwooUl aAISUBYaIdLWIoD JaLj0 |30 L
(+0B) ¥ot'e (gse'c) - - (gse'e) . - - saoualayp uogejsuel) Aousuno ubeio
(zss'el) (sie's) (zez's) - (g2's) | - = - - safipay moy yseo JapN
(s65'zZE) (1ea'8) {Bae'vz) - : z (sse'vz) |- : pouad ay} 10§ 5507
8l z g8l . - - = - g8l Z10Z ‘cl sunp je uoneiodiodu|
&inbg {91 230N} IVLOL {1 210N} (L1 (gL =30n) | (sessol) | (¥1 230N} | (¥i 230N])
IeloL s)salajul sjusugsnipe | a1on) |oualaylp |fsbuluies | wniwalg |endes
Buijoquon anjea aadasal | uonue|sues) | pauieay aleys aleys
-uop Buifaten | BuiBpay | aagejnwny
30
sjuaugsnipe anjea Burfiien
juaded ayj Jo s1aumMo 0} S|qeINqUIY

(¢S 4o spuesnoy])

Z10Z ‘1€ ¥3EW303A ANV €1 ANN NIIMLIE ISIHAINOD A0I¥Ad THL ¥O4 ALINDI NI SIONYHD 40 INIWILVLS a3LV¥aIrTOSNOD

Zhoe

‘1€ ¥IFINZO3A LV "A’'8 SAONVTHIHLIN JHNLONYLSVHANI XNTOSI 40 SINIWILVLS TVIONVYNIZ A3LVYAITOSNOD

dAINAISODA LI

=
XN10S R




ISOLUX

= infrastructure

/////

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED BETWEEN JUNE
13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Thousands of US$)
Note December 31, 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the period before taxes (42,557)
Adjustments for:
- Depreciation, amortization and impairment losses 7and9 25,426
- Net financial results 59,153
-Other non monetary transactions (5,481)

Subtotal 79,098
Changes in working capital :
- Inventories 7.046
- Trade and other receivables (19,066)
- Trade and other payables (74,429)
- Cash flows from construction services (137,371)
- Trade receivables — IFRIC 12 collections 5,915
- Other changes in non-current assets 8,658
Cash generated from operations
- Taxes paid (554)
Net cash generated from operating activities (173,260)
Cash flows from investing activities
- Addition to consolidation scope (Note 13) 381,544
- Acquisition of properly, plant and equipment (61,519)
- Net change in other financial investments 8,337
- Interest received and other financlal income 13,466
-Loans to related partias (225,424)
- Sales of property, plant and equipment 4,286
Net cash used in investing activities 120,690
Cash flows from Financing activities
- Proceeds from borrowings 325,289
- Reimbursement of borrowings (201,592)
- Interest paid (53,548)
- Proceeds from related parties borrowings 334,523
- Equity instruments issue 235
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 408,907
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 356,337
Cash and cash equivalents at start of the period 18
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the peried 14 366,355

Notes 1 to 33 and Appendixes | and Il form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

1. General Information

Isolux Infrastructure Netherlands, B.V. (formerly Grupo Isolux Corsan Netherlands, B.V) and its subsidiaries
and joint ventures (together, "the Group") was incorporated for an indefinite period on June 13, 2012 and its

registered office is Strawinskylaan 411, 1077 XX Amsterdam, the Netherlands, number trade register
55492584,

On June 13, 2012 the Shareholder Extraordinary General meeting, approved the change of name of the
Company to Isolux Infrastructure Netherlands, B.V.

The parent company's corporate purpose is the participation in other companies as a partner or shareholder in
the country or abroad (holding).

The Group operates mainly through the following lines of business:

= Concessions: the Group holds concessions for land infrastructures such as motorways and the electrical
infrastructures such as high-valtage transmission lines and energy transformation stations.

«Photovoltaic energy: generation or production of renewable energies through photovoltaic plants
technology.

Additionally the Group has its main acfivities and sales in India, Brazil, Mexico and Spain is expanding to other
countries such as United States of America, Italy and Peru. Appendixes | and Il to these notes contain
additional information with respect to the entities included in the consolidation scope.

The parent company is jointly controlled by Grupo Isolux Corsan Concesiones, S.L. (a subsidiary of Grupo
Isolux Corsan, S.A.) and Infra-PSP Canada Inc., which holds 80,77% and 19,23% of the shares respectively
(directly or indirectly) through the transaction described below. This joint control is exercised due to
shareholders’ agreements which state that key strategic operational decisions have to be taken through
supermajority involving both shareholders and other requirements.

The parent company was controlled by Grupo Isolux Corsan, S.A. before the agreement with Public Sector
Pension Investment Board (PSF), a canadian pension fund, which committed to contribute to Isolux
Infrastructure Netherlands the amount of US$ 627.7 million, of which the 50% is contributed through a

mandatory convertible loan and remaining 50% through an equity contribution (acquisition of shares issued by
Isolux Infrastructure Netherlands, B.V.).

In the agreement, it is also stipulated the commitment by Grupo Isolux Corsan Concesiones, S.L. to contribute
to the Group the amount of US$ 125.5 miillion (50% through a convertible loan and 50% trough equity).

Prior to the subscription of shares by PSP, on October 29 2012, Grupo Isolux Corsan Concesiones
contributed to the parent company, its participation in the Spanish companies Isolux Corsén Concesiones,
S.ALL ("ICCY), Isolux Corsan Concesiones de Infraestructuras, S.L.U., Grupo T-Solar Global, S.A. (GTSG) in
exchange of share capital increase. With these transactions, the parent company received the businesses of
concessions and photovoltaic energy.

Because this transaction falls within a business combination invelving entities under common control, the
management of the parent company decided to apply the predecessor accounting approach, same approach
used by Grupo Isolux Corsan for similar transactions in the past, using for these financial statements the
Grupo Isolux Corsan, S.A. consolidated book values. As a result, the total addition to the consolidation scope
on October 29, 2012, amounted to net assets of US$ 743 426 thousand. The above described transaction did

10
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMEBEER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

not have any monetary impact except for the cash and cash equivalent incorporated to the consolidation
scope.

Set out below identifiable assets and liabilities contributed amounts which are recognized at contribution date:

Identifiable assets and liabilities contributed

Cash and cash equivalents 381,544
Intangible assets — Other 2175747
Property, plant and equipment 1,665,433
Other non current assets 1,990,674
Other current assets 533,274
Non current borrowings (3,316,719)
Other non current liabilities (735,747)
Other current liabilities (1,642,942)
Total identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed 1.051,264
Non-Controlling interests (307,838)
Total 743,426

Because of the above described transaction, and considering the parent company date of incorporation, these
financial statements, presents a consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2012 and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated comprehensive income, consolidated staternent of change in equity and
consolidated cash flow statement for the period comprised between June 13, 2012 and December 31, 2012,
therefore not presenting comparative figures.

These consolidated financial statements therefore comprise the entire assets, liabilities and results of
operations of the group subsidiaries and joint ventures contributed to the parent company since October 29,
2012,

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared for issue by the Board of Directors on April 11,
2013.

In addition, the parent company presents separately its own stand-alone financial statements prepared in
accordance with the statutory provisions set out in Title 9 Book 2 ans Section 402 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil
Code. These financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with the facility detailed under
Section 362(8) of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, by which the company financial statements are based on
the accounting policies as adopted in the consolidated financial statements.

Photovoltaic Industry r ation

The Photovoltaic business unit, through T-Solar subgroup, mainly operates in Spain, with other investments in
Italy, Peru and India.

Regulatory framework governing the Group's activities in Spain

The main legal framework for the electricity sector is contained in the Electricity Act Law 17/2007 (4 July)
which adapted Spanish Law to European Parliament and Council Directive 2003/54/CE (26 June), which
established common regulation for the internal electricity market.

1
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

Electricity regulations make a distinction between two types of production facilities: those operating under the
"Ordinary System", and those operating under the “Special System". The subsidiaries of Grupo T-Solar
Global, S.A. carry out their activities in the electricity generation market under the “Special System". The main
provisions governing this activity are as follows:

Spanish Royal Decree 661/2007 (25 May), which regulates electricity production activities under the special
system, establishes the financial system for those producing energy under the special system. This Royal
Decree establishes output objectives for each of the renewable energy production technologies.

The target for photovoltaic technology was surpassed in August 2007. As a result, the SGE (Secretaria
General de Energia) issued a Resolution on 27 September 2007 whereby the period over which the regulated
rate for photovoltaic technology was established, by virtue of Article 22 of Royal Decree 661/2007. This period
was established at twelve months after the publication of the Resolution in the Official State Gazette ("BOE"),

i.e. 29 September 2007. Spanish Royal Decree 1578/2008 is applicable to any facility registered after that
date.

The main aspects of Royal Decree 661/2007, with respect to the financial system for electricity generation
using the Group's photovoltaic plants, requires the owners of facilities that entered into operation after 31
December 2007 to choose one of the following options, applicable for not less than one year:

¢ Regulated rate: producers output the electricity into the system through a distribution network and receive
the regulated rate for that output.

= Market rate: in this case the electricity price is established by the market or negotiated by the owner of the
facility, supplemented, if appropriate, by a premium. Minimum and maximum prices are established in this
case. However, In the case of photovoltaic solar energy no such premium is contemplated and therefore
{de facto) it can only apply the first option.

Operating facilities covered by Royal Decree 661/2007 have chosen to apply the regulated rate.

One of the novelties introduced by Royal Decree 1578/2008 is the distinction made between types of facilities.
This differentiation is of particular importance because Royal Decree 1578/2008 establishes certain annual

capacity quotas assigned on a quarterly basis and specific compensation based on the type and subtype of
facilities.

On 23 November 2010 Royal Decree 1565/2010 (19 November), which regulates and amends certain aspects
relating to electricity production under the Special System, was published. This Royal Decree includes a
reduction of the premiums ranging between 5% and 45% for new projects that fall within the first calls for
tenders as from the time this Royal Decree enters into force and the premium is eliminated after year 26.

Subsequently, on 24 December 2010 Royal Decree-Law 14/2010 (23 December), which establishes urgent
measures to correct the rate deficit in the electricity sector was published. This Royal Decree-Law establishes
a limit on the equivalent hours that photovoltaic plants entitled to collect a premium can operate as such
premium. It also establishes an extension from 25 to 28 years with respect to the right of the plants to sell
energy at a premium, thereby extending the period by three years compared with Royal Decree 661/2007.
Subsequently Legislative Bill on Sustainable Economy increases the compensation period for the photovoltaic
plants from 28 to 30 years,

On January 28, 2012 it was published the Spanish Royal Decree 1/2012, which removes compensation's pre-
allocation procedures as well as economic incentives for electrical power cogeneration new plants, renewable

12
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

energy sources and waste; by virlue of such decree, pre-allocation calls are indefinitely laid off, This regulation
only affects those Group applications launched to get a pre-registration in Spain, but not such plants on start-
up or operation phase.

Spanish Law 15/2012, of December 27 on fiscal measures, which comes into force on January 1, 2013;
imposes among other measures, a tax on the electricity's value, which charges a 7% tax rate on the
production activities and on the incorporation of energy power in the electrical system.

Finally, Spanish Royal Decree- law 2/2013, of February 1, on urgent measures in the electrical system and
financial sector, states that the price discount factor, from the year 2013 is the Consumer Price Index on
constant taxes excluding unprocessed food and energy products versus the general Consumer Price Index
that has been used until 2012.

Due to the regulatory changes, the Group has performed impairment tests on the Spanish solar-photovoltaic
plants Cash Generating Unit. These tests do not give rise to a significant impact on the recoverable amount of
the assets associated to the electricity generation segment.

2. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Isolux Infrastructure Netherlands BV, have been prepared in
accordance with Part 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared to present the historical financial position, results
of operations, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group.

The Group prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards ('IFRS') as adopted by the European Union and effective at 31 December 2012,

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, modified in those cases stipulated
by the IFRS-EU rules, except for derivative financial instruments in which assets and liabilities are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. The
application of IFRS-EU also requires that management exercise judgment in the process of applying the
accounting policies. Note 5 discloses the areas that require a higher level of judgment or entail greater
complexity, and the areas where assumptions and estimates are significant for the financial statements.

The amounts contained in these consolidated financial statements are expressed in thousands of United
States dollars ("US$"), unless otherwise stated.

21.  Standards, amendments and interpretations

The Group has applied in the preparation of these financial statements all the standards and interpretations of
IFRS-EU that are effective at the date of these consolidated financial statements,

Standards, interpretations and amendments effective from January 1, 2012 applied by the Group:
IFRS 7 (amendment), ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’. This amendment modified the required

disclosures about the risk exposures relating to transfers of financial assets. Among others, this amendment
could affect the sale transactions of financial assets, factoring agreements, financial assets and the loan titles

13
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

agreements. This amendment did not have a significant impact on the Group's Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments published by the |IASB that are not yet in force and have been
adopted by the European Union:

IFRS 10, "Consolidated Financial Statements’. IFRS 10 replaces current consolidation requirements of 1AS
27 and establishes principles for the presentation and preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements when
an entity controls one or more other entities. The standard defines the principle of control, and establishes
control as the basis for consolidation. This Standard will be effective for periods beginning on or after January
1, 2014 under IFRS-EU (January 1, 2013 under IFRS approved by the International Accounting Standards
Board , herein and after IFRS-IASB).

IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangements’. This Standard will be effective for periods beginning on or after January 1,
2014 under IFRS-EU (January 1, 2013 under IFRS-IASB).

IFRS 11, replaces the actual IAS 31 about joint ventures and under this standard investments in joint
arrangements are classified either as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the contractual rights
and obligations each investor has rather than just the legal structure of the joint arrangement. Joint operations
arise where a joint operator has rights to the assets and obligations relating to the arrangement and hence
accounts for its interest in assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Joint ventures arise where the joint
operator has rights to the net assets of the arrangement and accounts for its interest under the equity method.
Proportional consolidation of joint ventures is no longer allowed.

IFRS 12 "Disclosures of interests in other entities’. This Standard will be effective for periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2014 under IFRS-EU (January 1, 2013 under IFRS-IASB). Standard that defines the
disclousures related to interests hold in subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements and non-consolidated
entities.

IAS 27 (amendment) ‘Separated financial statements”. IAS 27 amendment is mandatory for periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014 under IFRS-EU (January 1, 2013 under IFRS-IASB). After IFRS 10 has
been published, |AS 27 covers only separate financial statements.

IAS 28 (amendment) ‘Associates and joint ventures’. IAS 28 has been amended to include the
requirements for joint ventures to be accounted for under the equity method following the issuance of IFRS 11.
IAS 28 is mandatory for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 under IFRS-EU (January 1, 2013 under
IFRS-IASB).

IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement’. This Standard will be effective for periods beginning on or after January
1, 2013, both under IFRS-EU and IFRS-IASB.

IAS 1 (amendment) ‘Financial statements presentation’. The main change resulting from this amendment
is a requirement to group items presented in ‘other comprehensive income’ (OCI) on the basis of whether they
will be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss or not (reclassification adjustments). This Standard will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012, both under IFRS-EU and IFRS-IASB. Earlier
application is permitted.

IAS 19 (amendment) 'Employee benefits’. IAS 19 amendment Is mandatory for periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2013.

14
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMEBEER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

IAS 32 (amendment) and IFRS 7 (amendment) ‘Compensation of financial assets for financial
liabilities’. IAS 32 amendment is mandatory for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 and is to be
applied retroactively, both under IFRS-EU and IFRS-IASB. IFRS 7 amendment is mandatory for periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013 and is to be applied retroactively, both under IFRS-EU and IFRS-IASB.

The Group is currently in the process of evaluating the impact on its operations derived from the application of
these new standards taking special consideration to the impact that IFRS 10, 11 and 12 will have on the
Group's Consolidated Financial Statements in opinion of the Directors.

Standards, interpretations and amendments that have not been adopted by the European Union:
IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments’. This Standard will be effective as from January 1, 2015 under IFRS-IASB,

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 (amendments) "Transition Guidance’. Effective from January 1, 2013 under
IFRS-IASB.

Improvements to IFRS published by the IASB in May 2012 as part of the Annual Improvements 2009-2011
Cycle. The improvements affect IFRS 1 ° First-time adoption of IFRS’, IAS 1'Presentation of Financial
Statements’, IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment’, IAS 34 ‘Interim financial reporting’, and IAS 32
‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’. These amendments are mandatory as from January 1, 2014 under
IFRS-IASB.

The Group is currently in the process of evaluating the impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements
derived from the application of these new standards and amendments.

15
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

3. Summary of accounting policies applied
3.1. Consolidation principles
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special-purpose companies) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group control another entity. The group also assesses existence
of control where it does not have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to govern the financial and
operating policies by virtue of de-facto control. De-facto control may arise in circumstances where the size of
the group’s voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of other shareholders give the group
the power to govern the financial and operating policies, ete. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which cantrol is transferred to the Group. They are de-consoclidated from the date that control ceases.

The group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. |dentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on
an acquisition- by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carmying value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit
or loss,

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the fair
value of non-controlling Interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this
consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised in profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognised in assets are also
eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the group.

Appendix | to these notes set outs the identification details of the subsidiaries included in the consolidation
scope under the full consolidation method.
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Agreements established between shareholders result in the investment being considered as a joint venture
(See Appendix II).

Sociedad Concesionaria Autovia A-4 Madrid, S.A. where the Group holds 48.75% of the shares is considered
subsidiary since the control is held by the Group due to shareholder agreements (See Appendix ).

ICC Sandpiper, B.V. where the Group holds 100% of the ordinary shares is considered Joint Venture since the
control is shared with Morgan Stanley Investment Partners due to shareholders agreements (See Appendix ||
and Note 17).

Transactions with non-controlling interests

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are sccounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair
value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of Subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The group’s investment in associates includes
goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the group's share of losses In an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the group

does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

The group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
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between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to 'share of profit/(loss) of an associate’ in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the group and its associate
are recognised in the group's financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the
associates, Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the group. Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associates are recognised in the income statement,

There are not associates within the Group as of 31 December 2012.

Joint ventures

The Group treats incorporated or unincorporated entities in which two or more members have joint control
under contractual agreements as joint ventures. Joint control is understood to be the situation established in
an agreement between the parties in which financial and operating decisions require the consensus of all
members.

Interests in joint ventures are consolidated using the proportionate consolidation method, The Group
combines its share of the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows of the jointly controlled entity,
line by line, with similar items in its own accounts. The Group recognizes, in these financial statements, the
portion pertaining to the other members of the jointly controlled entity of any profits or losses obtained from the
sale of the Groups' assets to the entity. The Group does not recognize its ewn share of the profits or losses of
the Jointly-controlled entity derived from the purchase by the Group of the entity's assets, until those assets
are sold to an independent third party. A loss is immediately recognized on the transaction if it causes a
reduction in the net realizable value of current assets or an impairment loss.

Appendix |l to these notes set outs the identification details of the joint ventures included in the consolidation
scope under the proportionate consolidation method.

3.2. Foreign currency transactions
Functional and presentation currency

The items included in these financial statements of each of the Group companies are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entities operate (“functional currency”). The
financial statements are presented in thousands of US$, which is the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are translated to each functional currency using the exchange rates effective
at the dates of the transactions or where itemns are re-measured; at the year-end they are measured at the
exchange rate in force at that moment. Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
fransactions and translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currency are recognized in the Consolidated Income Statement, except when deferred in equity (other
comprehensive income) as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net investment hedges.

Changes in the fair value of monetary instruments denominated in foreign currency and classified as available
for sale are separated into translation differences resulting from changes in the instrument's amartized cost
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and other changes in the instrument's carrying amount. The translation differences are recognized in results
for the year and other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

Results and the financial situation of all Group companies (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) whose functional currency differs from the presentation currency are franslated to
the presentation currency as follows:

. The assets and liabilities on each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange rate
at the balance sheet date:

The income and expenses in each income statement are translated at the average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates existing at
the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rates on the
transaction dates); and

u All resulting exchange differences are recognized as other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, any exchange differences resulting from the translation of a net investment in foreign
companies and loans and other instruments in foreign currency designated as hedges of those investments
are taken to Equity. When sold, such exchange differences are recognized in the Consolidated Income
Statement as part of the profit or loss on the zale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

3.3.  Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings mainly comprise plants, offices, technical installations, machinery and tooling. Property,
plant and equipment are recognized at cost less depreciation and cumulative impairment losses, except for
land, which is presented net of impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenses directly attributable to
purchases of properly, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset only when it
is likely that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset may be reliably determined. The carrying amount of a replaced component part is derecognized. All
other repair and maintenance expenses are charged to the consolidated income statement in the year in
which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other assets is calculated on a straight-line basis in order to allocate

costs to residual values based on the estimated useful lives of the assets in question, using the following
rates:

Average rate

Buildings 3%
Photovoltaic Solar Electricity production facilities 4%
Machinery 13%
Furnishings 7%
Data-processing equipment 13%
Vehicles 14%
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In the case of facilities located on leased land, the depreciation period may not exceed the term of the lease
established in the relevant agreement.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at Balance Sheet date.

An assef’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 3.7).

Gains and losses on the sale of property, plant and equipment are calculated by comparing the proceeds with
the carrying amount and are included in the consolidated income statement on the line “Other operating
income/expenses”. Own work capitalized is measured by adding to the price of consumable materials used,
the direct or indirect costs attributable to the construction of the asset and reflected as “Other operating
income” in the consolidated income statement,

3.4. Intangible assets - goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and represents the excess of
the consideration transferred over the Group's interest in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the
CGUs, or groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the

goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment
level,

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed,

3.5. Intangible assets - other
Concessions

Concessions are recognized in the amount paid by the Group with respect to assignment or operating
royalties. In most of the cases, concessions relate to the administrative authorization granted by national
authorities or other public bodies for the construction and subsequent maintenance and operation of
highways, and other assets during the periods specified in the relevant contracts. The accounting treatment of
such assets is according to the treatment stated in IFRIC 12.

Concessions fall under IFRIC 12 scope when it is considered that they are under the terms of the concession
contracts, where the concessionaire is granted the right to use the concession, but does not control it since:

sThe concession assets are owned by the granting authority in the majority of cases.

+The concession grantor controls the use of the infrastructure and rendered services and the conditions
under which they must be rendered following the criteria set out in the concession documents during
the stipulated concession term, and

=« The infrastructure reverts to the concession grantor at the end of the contract and the concession holder
no longer holds any rights in this respect.
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When concessions are under IFRIC 12 scope, the related asset can be classified as:

=Intangible asset: only when related contracts do not establish any unconditional right to receive cash or
other financial asset from the grantor independently of the use of the public service by the users

sFinancial asset (Note 3.8): When an unconditional right to receive cash or other financial asset from the
grantor s established independently of the public service by the users.

Revenues are recognized according to the fair value of each service rendered.

Con ion services:
The Group recognizes construction revenue according to what is stated in note 3.20.

The amounts received or to be received for the infrastructure construction services are recognized according
to its fair value,

The assets are measured based on the costs directly attributable to their construction and incurred up to the
date the assets become operational, such as studies and prajects, expropriations, replacement services,
construction work executed, site management and administration, installations and structures, and other
similar costs, as well as those indirectly attributable costs corresponding to the construction period. Likewise,
financial expenses accrued during construction period are capitalized (under the intangible asset model).

The Group does not recognize the contract obligations when they are signed to the extent they are executory,
however, when the grantor has performed its obligation above the obligation performed by the concession
company, a liability and an increase of the intangible asset are recognized by the amount that equals the
obligation performed by the concession company to the obligation performed by the grantor. This situation
occurs mainly when the concession company receives the right to charge users from an existing infrastructure
before performing construction works.

Concessions under intangible asset model recognize at beginning of the concession as part of the fair value of
the asset, provisions for dismantling, retirement or reinstatement, as well as improvement and increase of
capacity works whose revenues are included in the initial concession contracts and both related amortization
and time value of money effect of such provisions (as stated in Note 3.19) are booked against the net result of
the period. In addition, provisions related to significant replacement and repairmen works are booked in a
systematic manner on accrual basis.

It is common that some concession agreements registered under intangible asset model, include also the right
to receive payments directly from the grantor to finance partially the construction works, which is called as a
“grant". Therefore the construction services covered by these grants are not recognized as intangible asset,
they are treated as a financial asset until they are collected, however they are usually collected simultaneously
while the construction works are being performed.

Under financial asset model , the fair value of the construction service is accounted as an account receivable
which includes a financial remuneration calculated according to the estimates return rate of the projects based
on the estimated cash flows including, according to contracts terms, price index estimations and contractual
price reviews. Once the projects are in the operation phase, the account receivable is measured as amortized
cost, adjusting to the profit and loss statement the impacts due to the differences between estimated cash
flows and actual ones the return rate is not modified except for when relevant factors substantially change

impacting the cash flows of the projects (economical financial rebalancing by concession grantor, modification
of concession contracts, and other circumstances).
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Maintenance and Operating services:

Repairs and maintenance that do not extend the useful life or production capacity of the relevant assets are
expensed in the year the costs are incurred. Payback of the entire investment in a concession is obtained by
the end of the project period, net of any amount that the granting authority reimburse at the concession end.
The concession holder receives revenues for the services rendered, either directly from users or from the
granting authority.

Once the operation of the concession assets begin, related collections are recognized as ordinary revenue
and operating expenditure is included in expenses for the year. In all cases, the intangible assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the concession term, except for those highways concessions, which
are depreciated in a systematic way, based on the estimated traffic during the concession period. At each
account close, the return on each project is reviewed to determine whether there is any sign of impairment
since the assets are not recoverable on the basis of the operating revenue generated.

Concessions are usually financed by means of project finance arrangements (Project finance). These
financing structures are applied to projects that are themselves capable of providing sufficient guarantees to
the participating financial institutions with respect to the repayment of the debts incurred to undertake the
project, although additional guarantees can arise in between construction period and project implementation.
Each project is carried out through specific companies in which project assets are partly financed by a
contribution of funds from the promoters, limited to a certain sum, and partly (generally a larger sum) by long-
term external borrowings. Debt servicing is secured basically by the cash flows that will be generated by the
project itself in the future and by mortgaging the project assets.

Computer software

Software licenses acquired from third parties are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
prepare the licenses for the use of a specific program. These costs are amortized over the useful life of the
software for a maximum of five years.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an expense
when incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Group, and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond
one year, are recognized as intangible assets.

Computer program development costs recognized as assets are amortized over the program's estimated
useful lives (no more than 5 years) on a straight-line basis.
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Research and development expenses

Research expenses are recognized as an expense when Incurred, whereas development expenses incurred
for a project are recognized as an intangible asset if the development is viable from a technical and
commercial point of view, sufficient technical and financial resources are available to complete the project, the
costs incurred may be reliably determined and the generation of profits is probable.

Other development expenditures are recognized as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously
recognized as an expense are not recognized as an asset in a subsequent period. Capitalized development
costs that have a finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of each
project.

If the circumstances which permitted the capitalization of the development expenses change, the unamortized
portion is expensed in the year the circumstances change.

3.6. Interest costs

Interest costs incurred in the construction of any qualifying assets (which need a substantial period of time to
be ready for its use or its sale) are capitalized over the period needed to complete and prepare the asset for
the intended use. Other interest costs are expensed.

3.7. Non-financial asset impairment losses

Assets with an indefinite useful life, to intangible assets that are not available for use and goodwill are not
amortized/ depreciated and are tested annually for impairment. Assets subject to amortization/depreciation are
tested for impairment provided that an event or change in circumstances indicates that their carrying amount
might not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized in the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher between an asset's fair value
less sale costs and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped together at
the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill for which impairment losses have been recognized are tested at each balance
sheet date in the event that the loss has reversed.

3.8. Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held to maturity and available for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management establishes the classification of financial assets when they
are initially recognized and reviews the classification at each reporting date.

In accordance with the IFRS 7 hierarchy, the Group classifies market-valued financial instruments based on
the lowest level of used data that were significant with respect to the instrument whole fair value. In
compliance with this standard, financial instruments must be classified as follows:

1. Quoted prices in active markets for identical instruments.

2. Directly (prices) or indirectly (based on prices), observable data for the instrument.
3. Data not based on market observations.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired mainly for short-term sale. Derivatives are also categorized as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges. The assets in this category are included in current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are included

under “Trade and other receivables” “Financial Investments" and “Cash and cash equivalents” in balance
sheet (Note 3.12).

Receivables include the present value of future cash flows from certain concessions according to IFRIC 12. In
such cases, there is a contractual right to receive future cash flows or other financial assets directly from the
granting authority and the granting authority guarantees those payments (see Note 3.5 and 3.20).

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that Group management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. If the Group
sells a non-insignificant amount of its held-to-maturity financial assets, the entire category will be reclassified
as available for sale. Such available-for-sale financial assets are included in non-current assets, except those
that mature within 12 months as from the balance sheet date, which are classified as current assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives assets that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management intends
to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Recoagnition of financial assets

Acquisitions and disposals of investments are recognized at the trading date, i.e. the date the Group
undertakes to acquire or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are initially carried at fair value and transaction costs are taken to the income statement. Investments
are written off when the rights to receive cash flows from them have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Gains and losses resulting from changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are included in the income statement in the year in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognized in the income statement when the Group's right to receive
payment is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary instruments denominated in foreign currency and classified as available
for sale are analyzed by separating the differences in the instrument's amortized cost and other changes in
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the instrument's carrying amount. Translation differences on monetary instruments are recognized in the
income statement, while translation differences on non-monetary instruments are recognized under equity.
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary instruments classified as available for sale are
recognized in equity.

When available-for-sale instruments are sold or impaired, the cumulative fair value adjustments recognized in
equity are taken to the income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale instruments calculated using the effective interest rate method is recognized in
the income statement item “Net financial results”. Dividends from available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognized in the income statement when the Group's right to receive payment is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not
active (and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value using measurement techniques which
include recent uncontrolled transactions between willing and knowledgeable parties relating to other
instruments that are substantially identical and the analysis of discounted cash flows and option pricing
models, maximizing market input and relying as little as possible on the entity's specific inputs.

At the balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence of impairment losses with
respect to a financial asset or group of financial assets. For equity instruments classified as available for sale,
in order to determine whether there is impairment losses it will be necessary to examine whether there is a
significant or protracted below cost decline in the fair value of the securities, If there is any evidence of this
type for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss determined as the difference between the
acquisition cost and current fair value, less any impairment loss in that financial asset previously recognized in
the income statement, is removed from equity and recognized in the income statement. Impairment losses
recognized in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the income statement.

Impairment testing of receivables is described in note 3.11.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and presented by its net value in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to compensate the recorded amounts, and the Group has the intention to settle or to
realize the asset and cancel the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets are eliminated from the balance sheet when all risks and benefits inherent to ownership are
substantially transferred. In the specific case of accounts receivable, the understanding is that this takes place
in general when the risks of insolvency and default have been transferred.

3.9. Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the contract date and are subsequently measured at fair
value. The methed to recognize the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as

a hedging instrument and, if so, on the nature of the item being hedged. The Group may designate certain
derivatives as:

» fair value hedges of recognized assets and liabilities (fair value hedge);

« hedges of a specific risk associated with a recognized liability or a highly probable forecast transaction
(cash flow hedge); or

= hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedge).

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge transactions. The
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Group also documents its assessment, at inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether or not the derivatives

used in hedge transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows of the
hedged items.

The fair value of some derivative instruments used for hedging purposes is shown in note 11, Movements in
the hedging reserve are shown in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income. The total fair value of hedging derivatives is classified as a non-current
asset or liability if the period to maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months and as a current asset or
liability if the period to maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. Derivatives not classified as hedges
for accounting purposes are carried as current assets or liabilities.

Regarding the fair value hierarchy established in IFRS 7, the Group proceeds to classify financial instruments
market valuations as stated in note 3.8. as follows: Fair Value of derivative financial instruments is determined
by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified as fair value hedges are recognized

in the income statement together with any change in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that may be
attributable to the risk hedged.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of the
hedged item for which effective interest rate method has been used, is recorded as profit or loss up to its
maturity.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash flow
hedges is recognized in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is immediately taken to the
income statement item “Net financial results".

Amounts accumulated in equity are recorded in the income statement in the periods when the hedged item
affects results (for instance, when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place). The gain or loss relating to the
effective portion of interest rate swaps that hedge variable-rate borrowings is recognized in the income
statement item "Net financial results”. The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of forward foreign
currency contracts that hedge sales is recognized in the income statement item “Sales” and the ones hedging
purchases is recognized in "Materials consumed and other external costs”.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognized
when the forecast transaction is ullimately recognized in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred
to the income statement item “Net financial results”.
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Net investment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for in a similar way to cash flow hedges. Any
gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognized in equity.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is immediately recognized in the income statement. Gains
and losses accumulated in equity are included in the income statement when the foreign operation is disposed
of. At December 31, 2012 the Group has no net investment hedge.

Derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Certain derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting and are recognized at fair value through profit or loss.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
immediately recognized in the income statement item “Net financial results”.

3. 10. Inventories

Raw materials and finished products are carried at the lower between the acquisition or production cost, using
the weighted average cost method, and the net realizable value.

Finished products and work in progress items costs include design costs, raw materials, direct work farce,
other direct costs and general manufacturing costs (based on a normal capacity of production facilities).
Changes in prices of such inventories referred to variable indexes are recorded against inventories value,

Obsolete, defective or slow-moving products are written down to their net realizable value.,

Net realizable value is the selling price estimated during ordinary business course, less applicable sale
variable costs.

3.11. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers related to goods sold or services rendered in the course
of the company’s business. If the receivables are expected fo be collected in a year or less (or in the operation
cycle if longer), they are classified as current assets. Otherwise, they are recorded as nen-current assets.

Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method, less a provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due in accordance with the original terms of the receivables. The existence of significant financial
difficulties on the part of the debtor, the probability that the debtor will become bankrupt or undertake a
financial restructuring, and late payment or default are considered to be indicators of the impairment of a
receivable. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The asset's carrying amount is
written down as the provision is applied and the loss is recognized in the income statement. When a
receivable is uncollectable, the provision for receivables is adjusted accordingly. Subsequent recoveries of
receivables written off are recognized in the income statement for the year in which the recovery takes place.

3.12, Cash and cash equivalents
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Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits in banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of 3 months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the balance sheet. When a company's cash is restricted, for example when not freely
available due to bank requirements, it is not classified under "Cash and cash equivalents”,

3.13. Share Capital
Common shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. The costs of an equity transaction that is abandoned are recognized
as an expense.

Where any Group company purchases the parent company's equity share capital (treasury shares), the
consideration paid, including any direcily attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to the parent company's stockholders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where
such shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax and social contribution effects, is included in equity
attributable to the parent company's stockholders.

Pending payments regarding partly paid shares are recognised as an account receivable asset in the balance
sheet when it meets certain conditions (the shareholders have right to full dividends and cannot avoid the calls
according to the schedule defined).

3.14. Deferred income

a) Capital grants

Official subsidies relating to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment are recognized under "Deferred
revenues” in the nominal amount granted after receiving official notification of the grant and when it is deemed
there are no reasonable doubts regarding compliance with the grant conditions and, therefore, regarding the
collection of the amount concerned.

As from the date of recognition, capital grants are taken to the income statement in proportion to the
depreciation suffered over the period concerned by the assets financed by the grants.

The attribution of capital grants is recognized under the heading "Other ordinary revenues" in the income
statement. They are not offset against the depreciation of the subsidized asset.

b) Interest free loans granted by official bodies

The loans received by the Group that do not acerue interest are recorded at their restated value (calculated
using an effective market interest rate), and the difference generated at the initial moment between the
nominal amount of the loan and its restated value is attributed as follows:

When the financing is to be used to acquire an asset, the above-mentioned difference is recorded as deferred
revenues and taken to results for the year over the depreciation period for the financed assets.

c) Deductions
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Tax revenues deriving from corporate income tax deductions or credits resulting from the investment in assets
but yet to be applied, are taken to the consolidated income statement in the same period in which the
property, plant and equipment generating those deductions or credits is depreciated, given that this involves
specific assistance subject to compliance with certain conditions and are intended to encourage investments
in renewable energies.

3.15. Trade and other payables

Trade payables are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method.

Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

3.16. Borrowings and compound financial instruments
a)Borrowings

Borrowings are initially carried at fair value net of transaction costs, They are subsequently measured at
amortized cost. Any differences between the funds obtained (net of necessary costs) and their repayment
value are recognized in the income statement over the life of the debt applying the effective interest rate
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liablilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
for at least 12 months as from the balance sheet date.

Interest and other costs incurred to obtain bank loans are taken to the income statement for the year on an
accrual basis,

b)Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the group comprise convertible notes that can be converted to
share capital at the option of the holder, and the number of shares to be issued does not vary with changes in
their fair value,

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initially at the fair value of a similar
liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is recognised initially at the
difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the
liability component. Any directly atiributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity
compaonents in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Estimated cash flows are re-estimated at each closing date
and changes in the amortised costs using the ariginal effective interest rate are recognised against profit and
loss. The equity component of a compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent to initial
recognition except on conversion or expiry.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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As the issuer of a financial instrument, the Group classifies it in full or its components as a financial liability, a
financial asset or an equity instrument at the time of initial recognition, in accordance with the financial
substance of the contractual agreement and the definition of financial liabilities, financial assets and equity
instruments established by I1AS 32.

In this connection, the Group issued different instruments (Note 17) in which the main component is a non-
derivative financial liability.

3.17. Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the income statement
except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity. In this case, tax is also recognized in
equity.

The current tax charge is calculated based on the tax laws approved or about to be approved at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Group's companies operate and generate results subject to tax.
Management assesses regularly the positions taken in relation to tax returns with respect to situations where
tax law is subject to interpretation, and establishes, where appropriate, the necessary provisions on the basis
of the amounts that it is expected to pay to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is calculated, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, if the deferred
taxes arise from the initial recognition of a liability or an asset on a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction has no effect on the tax gain or loss, they are not accounted for.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be offset.

Deferred income tax iz provided on temporary differences arising on investments In subsidiaries and
associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group and
it is likely that the temporary difference will not reverse in a foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if, and only if, there is a legally recognized right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities derive
from income tax levied by the same taxing authority on the same taxable entity or person or different taxable
entities or persons which intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

3.18. Employee benefits

Pension and similar obligations

The Group has no pension or similar obligations with its employees or executives.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable as a result of the Group's decision to terminate employment before the

normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognizes these benefits when it has demonstrably undertaken to terminate current
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employees' employment in accordance with a formal detailed plan that eannot be withdrawn, or to provide
severance indemnities as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits that will not
be paid within 12 months of the balance sheet date are discounted to their present value.

Bonus plans

The Group recognizes a provision when contractually obliged or when there is a past practice that has created
a constructive obligation.

3.19. Provisions

The Group recognizes a provision when: they have a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is likely that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are carried at the present value of forecast payments that are expected to be required to settle the
obligation, using a rate before taxes that reflects the current market assessment of the fime value of money
and the specific risks of the obligation. Any increase in the provision over time is recognized as interest
expense,

Provisions related to obligations associated to the infrastructures operated under concession agreements are
stated in note 3.5.

Provisions for warranties

The Group provides customers with warranties for photovoltaic panel sales. The provisions that are necessary
for the warranties granted are calculated based on theoretical expectations and historic information regarding
defect rates and estimated repair costs. These items are reviewed and adjusted on a reqular basis. These
provisions are recorded at the estimated value of future claims deriving from aforementioned contracts and
charged against operating expenses.

Provision for disassembly

The Group has recorded the present value of the future estimated cost of disassembling and removing the
solar plants at the end of their useful life as an increase in the value of the asset.

3.20. Revenue recognition

Sales include the fair value of payments received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the
ordinary course of the Group's activities. Sales are presented net of value added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognizes revenue when the amount may be reliably estimated, it is likely that the future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and the specific conditions are fulfilled for each of the Group activities,
as described below. A reliable calculation of the amount of revenue is not deemed possible until all sale-
related contingencies have been resolved. The Group's estimates are based on historical results, taking into
account customer type, transaction type and specific terms.
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The methods used to recognize revenue in each of the Group's business aclivities are described below:
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Sale of electricity

Electricity sales by photovoltaic solar plants based on industry regulations (Note 1) are recorded in
accordance with actual production. Sales for the year include an estimate of supplied energy that has yet to be
invoiced at the end of the year.

Construction business

The Group’s entities recognize revenue due to the construction services that are required by the concession
contracts (electricity infrastructure and toll roads mainly) as described in note 3.5 as stated in IFRIC 12

When the results of a construction contract may be reliably estimated, ordinary revenue and associated costs
of the concession contract are recognized as such in the income statement, based on the percentage of
completion of the activity performed under the contract at the balance sheet date. When a project is expected
to generate a loss, the necessary provisions are recorded to cover the entire loss during preparation of the
updated budget.

Percentage of completion is generally determined by examining work executed. This method may be used
since all contracts generally include:

= adefinition of each project unit that must be executed to complete the whole project;
= ameasurement of each of these project units; and
e the price at which each unit is certified.

In order to put this method into practice, at the end of each month a measurement of completed units is
obtained for each project. The resulting total is the amount of construction work executed at the contractual
price, which is recognized as project revenue from inception. The difference with respect to the corresponding
figure a month earlier is production for the month, which is the amount recognized as revenue,

Construction work costs are recognized for accounting purposes on an accrual basis; costs actually incurred
to execute project units completed, plus costs that may be incurred in the future and must be allocated to the
project units completed, are recognized as expenses,

The application of this revenue recognition method is combined with the preparation of a budget made for
each construction contract by project unit. This budget is used as a key management tool in order to maintain
detailed monitoring, project unit by project unit, of fluctuations between actual and budgeted figures.

In such exceptional cases, when it is not possible to estimate the margin for the entire contract, the total costs
incurred are recognized and sales that are reasonably assured with respect to the completed work are
recognized as contract revenue, subject to the limit of the total contract costs.

During the execution of construction work, unforeseen events not envisaged in the primary contract may occur
that increase or decrease the volume of work to be executed. These changes to the initial contract require the
grantor's technical approval and subsequent financial approval. This approval permits, from that moment, the
Issue and collection of certificates for this additional work. Revenue from the additional work is not recognized
until the grantor's approval is reasenably assured: costs incurred in this work are, however, recognized when
incurred, irrespective of the degree of approval obtained from the grantor.

In the event that the amount of work aclually executed in a project exceeds the amount certified at the year
end, the difference between the two amounts is reflected in the balance sheet item “Trade and other
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receivables”. When the amount of work actually executed in a project is lower than the amount of the
certificates issued, the difference is recognized in the balance sheet item “Trade and other payables®.

Estimated project close-out costs are provisioned and apportioned over the execution period. These costs are
recognized proportionally on the basis of estimated costs as a proportion of executed work. Costs incurred
from projection completion to definitive setilement are charged to the provision recorded and the remaining
balance is recognized in the item "Provisions for other liabilities and charges” in the balance sheet.

Costs relating to the tendering of bids for concession contracts are taken to the income statement when
incurred, when the success of the bid is not probable or is not known at the date the costs are incurred. Bid
tendering costs are included in the cost of the contract when the success of the bid is probable or is known, or
when it is certain that the costs will be reimbursed or included in contract revenue.

When claims against the grantor due to construction overcosts arise, the Group only recognises the related
revenue when negotiations have reached an advanced stage such that is probable that the grantor will accept
the claim and the amount of the claim that the grantor will probably accept can be reliably measured.

Operating and Maintenance Concessions business
The Group has concessions to operate electricity infrastructure and toll roads.

Under concession contracts, revenue and expenditure is recognized on an accrual basis, irrespective of when

the related monetary or financial flows take place. The accounting treatment of the main aclivities is described
below.

Multiple element contracts

Concessions for public services are contracts between a private operator (the Concessionaire) and the
Government or a different public body (the Grantor), in which the latter party grants to the private operator the
right to provide public services such as the supply of electricity, or the operation of roads, etc. Control over the
asset is retained by the grantor as stated in note 3.5, but the private operator assumes responsibility for
building the asset and for operating and maintaining the infrastructure. Depending on the contract terms,
concessions are treated as intangible assets (when the predominant element is that the concession holder
has the right to receive fees directly from users or the level of future flows are not assured by the granting
authority) or as financial assets (when the granting authority guarantees a level of future cash flows).

The Group offers certain agreements under which it builds an infrastructure in exchange for a concession to
operate it for a specified period. When such contracts contain multiple elements, the amount of revenue
recognized is defined as the fair value for each phase of the contract. Revenue from infrastructure
construction is recognized as described in the preceding paragraphs. Revenue from an intangible asset
operation is recognized on an accrual basis as operating revenue. When a financial asset has been previously
recognized, revenue is treated as a principal repayment with an interest income component. The
characteristics of the Group's main activities are described below:

Toll roads

In most cases, the principle of risk and business venture on the part of the concession holder coexists with the
principle of assurance of the concession's economic and financial equilibrium on the part of the Grantor.
Revenue is recognized at fair value during the construction phase.
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In the Toll read contracts hold by the Group it is not usual that there is an unconditional right to receive cash or
other financial asset from the grantor, and the level of cash to be received depends on the number of users
(risk demand), therefore an intangible asset is recognized (Note 3.5). The Group recognizes operating and
maintenance revenue on an accrual basis and the intangible asset is depreciated over the concession term
based in the traffic forecast for the concession.

Certain concession contracts include the obligation for the concessionaire to pay to the grantor a % over the
annual revenue obtained, as revenue sharing.

In such cases all revenues received from users are registered by the Group as operating revenue, recognizing
an operating expense for the amount to be paid to Authorities according to contract terms (Note 9).

Electricity transmission lines

As described for Toll roads, the principle of risk and business venture on the part of the concession holder
coexists with the principle of assurance of the concession's economic and financial equilibrium on the part of
the Grantor and revenue is recognized at fair value during the construction phase.

In the Transmission line contracts hold by the Group it is usual that there is an unconditional right to receive
cash or other financial asset from the Grantor, and the level of cash to be received is not subject to the
demand risk, therefore a financial asset is recognized. Revenues related to concession contracts without
demand risk are recognized using the effective interest rate method applied to the concession right.

Interest revenue related to concessions that apply the financial asset model are recognized as operating
revenue since it is considered that such revenues are related to the ordinary business of the Group’s entities
(Note 12).

Interest revenue

Interest revenue is recognized based on time, with reference to outstanding principal and taking into
consideration the applicable effective interest rate, which matches the carrying value of the asset, discounting
expected future cash flows over the estimated useful life of the asset,
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3.21. Leases
When a Group’s company is the lessee — Finance lease

The Group lease certain property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment leases where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance

leases are capitalized at the lease’s inception at the lower between the fair value of the leased property and
the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on
the outstanding debt. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in Borrowings
if the lesser is a financial entity. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance lease is depreciated over
the shorter of the useful life of the asset or the lease term.

When a Groups™ company is the lessee — Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lesser are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lesser) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

3.22, Dividend distribution

Dividends can only be paid where there are cumulative retained earnings available for distribution. The net
equity of the company, after the distribution, must be at least equal to the sum of the called-up share capital
plus any legal reserves and reserves required by the articles of association.

Dividend distribution to the Group's parent company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the financial
statements in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Group's parent company's shareholders.

3.23. Fair value adjustments

Accounting policies relating to fair value estimation are mainly those described in note 3.4, 3.8., 3.9. and
3.16.; note 4.3 and 5 describe in detail the company accounting policy and practice regarding fair value
estimation.

4, Financial risk management

4.1. Financial risk factors

The Group's activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
program focuses on financial markets uncertainty and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risks.

Risk management is performed by the Group's Central Treasury Department in accordance with policies

approved by the Managers of the Group. This department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in
close association with the Group’s operating units. The Managers provides written policies for overall risk
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management and for specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, use of
derivatives and non-financial derivatives, and investment of cash surpluses.

The sensitivity tests have been performed considering at 12-months period.
a) Market risk
a.1) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has international operations and are therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk during currency
transactions, relating particularly to the Brazillan reais, Mexican peso, Indian rupee and Euro. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. Net positions denominated in currencies other than the functional one exist
in certain Brazilian companies, and represent 1,02% over total borrowings as at 31 December, 2012,

Balances mainly relate to Viabahia Concesionaria de Rodovia's debt (US§ 14,452 thousand), denominated in
US Dollar, covered through a Cross Currency Swap (Note 11) and to IC Participaciones de Viabahia's debt
(US$ 26,687), denominated in Euro.

Additionally, there is an intercompany loan from the parent company to spanish subsidiaries Isolux Corsan
Concesiones, S.A.U. and Isolux Corsan Concesiones de Infraestructuras, S.L.U amounted to US$H 324,012
thousand, denominated in US Dollar, which generates foreign exchange risk in these subsidiaries,

Foreign exchange positions arise from transactions of the contributed in the additions to consolidation scope
as a result of the transaction described in note 1.

The Group analyzes their exposure to foreign exchange risk in a dynamic manner. A simulation is performed
in which the Group calculates the effect on results of a specific change in the exchange rate.

At 31 December 2012, if the US Dollar had depreciated/appreciated by 10% against the EUR the consolidated
after-tax result would have been US$ 24,604 thousand lower/higher mainly due to the effects of the
increase/decrease in USD liability positions; equity would have changed by US 1,924 thousand.

The sensitive tests have been performed considering at 12-months period.

The Group has a number of investments in foreign operations whose net assets are exposed to foreign
exchange risk. These investments are located basically in Brazil, Mexico, Spain, ltaly, India and Peru. In
general, the Group ensures that operations in each country are financed by borrowings in the functional
currency of that country, taking into account the previously-mentioned exception, so that foreign exchange risk
only affects the capital investment. Where the investment is partially or fully financed by borrowings, the Group
ensures that the loans are obtained in the correspondent functional currency.

During 2012 the Group started to develop new photovoltaic plants in South Africa, mainly for solar plant
implementation services.
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Set out below is a breakdown expressed in thousands of US$§ of the main foreign currency exposures
affecting capital investments at December 31, 2012:

December 31,

Currency 2012
Euros (Net assets) 415,850
Mexican Peso (Net assets) 143,708
Indian Rupee (Net assets) 173.101
Brazilian Reais (Net assets) 390,176
Muevo Sol (Net assets) 27131
South African Rands (Net assets) 197

a.2) Price risk

The Group is not exposed to equity instrument price risk since they have no significant investments of this
nature.

For electric transmission line concessions, the Group is exposed to service price risk, since they are referred
to inflation and other economical index depending contractual terms. This risk is not considered to be
significant.

For highway business, price risk is not considered significant, as tarifs are part of the concession agreement.

In the area of electricity production the Group is not exposed to market price risk for any raw material. The
main costs associated with the activity are depreciation and maintaining the facilities. In order to both build
and maintain the facilities the Group has concluded turnkey agreements and therefore the main costs are
controlled variables.

a.3) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As explained in note 18, Group participates in a number of investment projects structured under "Project
finance" arrangements in which, among other aspects, repayments are secured only by cash flows from the
respective projects; there may be, in some cases and during the construction phase, additional guarantees. In
such cases, financing mainly comprises long-term, variable-rate instruments. The interest rates applicable
depend on the country in which the project is located and on the currency in which the financing is issued.
Financing issued at variable rates exposes Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group uses interest rate
swaps to convert long-term financing totally or partially to fixed interest rates. Additionally, under certain
project finance contracts the company that obtains the financing undertakes vis-a-vis the granting banks to
contract the above-mentioned derivative financial instruments.
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Exposure to variable interest rate risk at December 31, 2012 is analyzed below:;

TJLP and THE Euribor PLR Libor
chl

Rate (2) rate (3) rate rate (4) rate Total
Borrowings (1) 1,130,267 584,312 1,061,318 622172 151736 3,549,805
Financial investments related to borrowings (596) (26,703) (60,490) (19,467) - {107,256)
Interest-bearing cash and cash equivalents (140,725)  (21,002)  (139,834) (16,811) (37,983)  (356,355)
Net position 988,946 536,607 860,994 585,894 113,753 3,086,194
Portlon hedge by derivative financial g
trinenia 0% 60% 93% 0% 55% 39%

(1) It does not include borrowings with fixed interest rate, and free inferest, except Viabahia's debt which is covered with cross curfency swap,
(2) Brazilian long-term reference interest rate

(3) Mexican long-term reference interest rate
(4) Indian long-term reference interest rate

The Group analyses their exposure to interest rate risk in a dynamic manner. A simulation is performed in
which the Group calculates the effect on results of a specific change in the interest rate. In each simulation,
the same interest rate fluctuation is used for all currencies and reference rates. Scenarios are only simulated
for liabilities representing the most relevant interest-bearing positions. Based on the simulations performed the
impact of after-tax results mainly due to an increase/reduction of 100 basis points in the interest rate would

have been a reduction/increase of US$ 10,313 thousand. The sensitivity tests have been performed
considering at 12-months period.

Likewise, there are debt balances covered by interest rate derivatives (Note 11). Based on the simulations
performed the impact on equity mainly due to valuation change of financial derivatives prompted by an
increase and decrease of 100 basis points in the interest rate would have been a decrease of US$ 66,994
thousand and an increase of US$ 73,177 thousand respectively.

b) Credit risk
The Group manages credit risk in relation to the following groups of financial assets:

s Financial Investments (Note 10), Derivative financial instruments (Note 11) and balances included under
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13).

= Balances related to trade and other receivables (Note 12).

Financial investments, derivative financial instruments and cash equivalents are contracted with reputable
financial insfitutions that obtain high credit ratings. The amounts are atomized in several financial entities.

Relating trade receivables, a significant risk is not deemed to exist since the Group activity relates to toll road
concessions in which payments are made directly in cash, and electric transmission lines in which the granting
authority has delegated the monthly payments to the users of the infrastructure (reputable distribution and

other energy business companies) although guarantees the contractual unconditional right to received cash
flows or other financial assets.
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c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out
market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Group’s Treasury Department aims
to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

Regarding to the Group's project financing arrangements (‘Project finance”), as explained in note 18,
repayments are mainly secured by cash flows from the respective projects. In such cases, the Group hedges
liquidity risk by ensuring that financing is long term and structured on the basis of the forecast cash flows for
each project. Accordingly, 87% of financing recognized at December 31, 2012 falls due after more than one
year and 65% of the financing recognized at December 31, 2012 falls due after more than five years.

As regards the Group's liquidity position, management monitors the forecast liquidity based on expected cash
flows.

The following table contains a breakdown of the Group's financial liabilities that will be settled in the net
amount, grouped together by maturity date based on the period from the balance sheet date to the maturity
date stipulated in each contract. The amounts shown in the table relate to undiscounted cash flows stipulated
in the contract. Balances payable in less than 12 months reflect the relevant carrying amounts as the effect of
discounting is not significant.

Less than 1 Between 1 Between2 Morathan s

year and 2years  and 5 years years
At December 31, 2012
Borrowings 504,976 172,897 717,571 2,623,781
Derivative financial instruments 30,130 15,477 46,432 170,252
Trade and other payables (*) 476,045 - 75,272 539,952
Accrued unmatured interest 258,934 244,978 646,143 833,110
Total 1,270,085 433,352 1,485,418 4,167,105

(*) Excluding deferred revenue and balances recognized in ralation to Viabahia Concesslonarla de Redovias,S.A. and Varanasi Aurangabad
toll road, S.A. (Note 17)

Under less than 1 year column it is included a total of US$ 313,618 thousand related to borrowings of projects
under construction. Once projects begin the operation phase, these borrowings are structured as “project
finance” with amortization terms through the concession life.

Liquidity risk is managed on an overall, centralized basis by Group Treasury. This includes both managing
cash from the Group's recurring transactions (analysis and follow-up of debt maturities, collections, renewal
and contracting of loans, management of available credit lines, and temporary investment of cash surpluses)
and managing the funds necessary to undertake planned investments. At December 31 2012, the Group has
2 negative working capital amounting to US§ 125,387 thousand. Management believes that the negative
working capital mainly generated by the bridge loans facilities (Note 18) that during the construction period of
the infrastructures are classified under current borrowing, but once the operation period begins are-converted
into project finance loans with long term maturities, associated to the cash flow estimated periods that will be
generated by the projects.
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4.2, Capital risk management

The Group's capital management objectives consist of protecting its capacity to do business as a going
concern in order to obtain a return for shareholders and profits for other holders of equity instruments, as well
as to maintain an optimal capital structure and reduce cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group could adjust the amount of dividends payable to
shareholders, reimburse capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell shares to reduce debt.

Leverage ratio at December 31, 2012 is shown below:

December
31,2012

Borrowings and Trade and other payables (Note 18 and 17) (*) 4,537,747
Less financial investments related to borrowings (Note 10) (107,258)
Less: cash and cash equivalents ( Note 7) (356,355)
Net debt 4,074,136
Equity (including non controlling interests) 1,334,712
Total capital 5,408,848
Leverage ratio (net debt / total capital) 75,32%

(") Excluding Borrowings from related parties (Note 30), deferred revenue, taxes and balances described in relation to Viabahia
Concessionaria de Rodovias,S.A. and Varanas! Aurangabad toll road, 5.A, {Note 17)

The leverage ratio arising meets the Group's strategy. It is deemed reasonable since the main business of the
Group is characterized by continued high financing levels (concessions funding through “project finance").

4.3. Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and held-
for-trading and available-for-sale investments) is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
The market price used for financial assets is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Market prices or brokers' prices are used for long-term
payables. Other techniques, such as the estimated discounted cash flow method, are used to determine fair
value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present
value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined
using forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount less the provisien for the impairment of receivables and payables is assumed to
approximate their fair value. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.
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5. Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements under IFRS-UE requires that management make
estimations and assumptions that could affect the accounting policies adopted and the amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenue, expenses and related breakdowns. The estimates and assumptions made are based on
past experience or other facts that are deemed to be reasonable under the circumstances, at the balance
sheet date, the result of which is the basis from which to judge the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities
that cannot be immediately determined in any other manner. Actual results could differ from estimated ones.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Certain accounting estimates are considered to be significant if the amount of the estimates and assumptions
is material and if the impact of the estimates and assumptions on the financial position or operating results is
material. Group management's main estimates are explained below.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Groups makes estimates and judgments concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and judgments that have a significant risk

of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liahilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

Acquisitions of groups of net assets

On the date a subsidiary is acquired, the IFRS require an analysis of whether or not the purchase is of a
business or a group of net assets that do not comply with the definition of a business in accordance with IFRS
3 "Business combinations" (Note 3.1).

When the Group acquires shares in a company that constitutes a group of net assets that do not form a
business, the cost of the group is distributed among the assets and liabilities identified on an individual basis
within the group, establishing their fair values at the time of acquisition. At times the cost of the group of net
assets may include a share-based payment component. In this case, the difference between the fair value of
the assets acquired and the amount agreed to be paid in cash is credited directly to equity.

When the group acquires shares in an entity that constitutes a business, at the acquisition date the cost of the
business combination is distributed among the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recorded
by the acquired company. These assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. If a portion of the
cost of the combination depends on future events, the amount of that adjustment is included In the cost of the
combination, provided that the events are probable and may be reliably measured. The excess cost of the
business combination over the buyer's interest in the identifiable net fair value of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities is recognized as goodwill,

Estimated impairment of goodwill and other non-financial assets
The Group verifies annually whether there is an impairment loss in respect of goodwill and other non-financial
assets if any impairment indicates exists, in accordance with the accounting policy in note 3.7. The amounts

recoverable from cash generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates, and an analysis is performed to determine the sensitivity of the most
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relevant variables taken into consideration in those estimates, with special attention paid to those situations in
which there could be indicators of potential impairment (Note 8).

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. A significant level of judgment is required to
determine the worldwide provision for income tax. There are many transactions and calculations with respect
to which the ultimate calculation of the tax is uncertain in the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax problems based on estimates as to whether additional taxes will be
necessary. When the final tax result differs from the amounts which were initially recognized, such differences
will have an effect on income tax and the provisions for deferred taxes in the year in which they are deemed to
arise. In this sense, there are no significant aspects subject to estimates that could have a material impact on
the Group's position.

Fair value of derivatives or other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group exercises judgment to select a variety of methods and to make assumptions based
mainly on market conditions at the balance sheet date. The Group has used discounted cash flow analyses for
a number of financial instruments not traded in active markets.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognizes revenue from Concession contracts under the terms of IFRIC 12, in accordance with
IAS 18 and IAS 11.

Revenue in respect of the construction services that are required by concession contracts is determined on a
percentage-of-completion basis, as described in note 3.20. Percentage of completion is calculated as costs
incurred under the contract as a percentage of estimated total contract costs. This revenue recognition
method is only used when the result of the contract may be reliably estimated and the contract is likely to
generate profits. If the result of the contract cannot be reliably estimated, revenue is recognized as costs are
recovered.

When the costs related to a contract are likely to exceed the contract's revenue, the loss is immediately
expensed. When applying the percentage-of-completion method, the Group makes significant estimates in
relation to total costs necessary to perform the contract.

These estimates are reviewed and evaluated periodically to verify whether a loss has been generated and
whether the percentage-of-completion methad may continue to be applied, or to reestimate the forecast
project profit. During the project, the Group also estimates likely contingencies relating to the increase in the
total estimated cost and adjusts revenue recognized accordingly.

The Group's historical data indicates that its estimates are adequate and reasonable in relation to the above-
mentioned aspects,

Generally, the construction services are usually subcontracted by the Group’s concession companies to
construction companies which are not included in the consolidation scope. The Group recognizes a minimum
additional margin on construction costs charged by the construction company. This margin is estimated for
each concession, approximately in 1% (except for certain projects where the margin is higher according to an
analysis of the risks assumed by the concession companies). In some cases the total construction service or
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part of it is carmried out directly by the concession companies. In these cases, the margin estimated is
calculated considering the fair value of the service.

In the concession contracts considered as Financial Asset Model according to IFRIC 12, the financial income
is calculated by the Group on the basis of the effective interest rate, equivalent to the project's internal rate
return. Considering cash flows estimations, which discounted value includes inflation and other economical
index according to contractual terms that impacts the tariff, is recognized under operating income.

Useful lives and amortization methods of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Group's management determines estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment and its intangible assets, This estimate is based on the period during which the non-
current assets will generate economic benefits. At each account close, the Group reviews the useful lives of
non-current assets. If the estimates differ from previous estimates, the effect of the change is recognized
prospectively as from the year in which the change takes place.

For those intangible assets related to toll road concessions that are depreciated in a systematic way based on
the expected traffic, Group’s management annually updates traffic estimates made for such concessions.

Also, in case of the circumstances involve a worsening of the business plans, the Group performed the
corresponding impairment tests.

For those property, plant and equipment assets related to Salar Energy Business, the Group's estimate of
useful life is based on the planned lifecycle of the solar plants, which use high-tech equipment. In any event,
the estimates are based on recommendations made by expert technicians. However, these estimates could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor actions in response to future industry
cycles. The Group will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are shorter than previously

estimated, and write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold.

Receivables and financial assets

The Group makes estimates relating to the collectability of balances owned by customers in projects in which
disputes have arisen or litigation is in progress due to disagreement with the work executed or the failure to
fulfill contractual clauses linked to the return on the assets handed over to customers. The Group also makes
estimates to assess the recoverability of available-for-sale financial assets, based mainly on the financial
health and near-term business prospecis of the investee company.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when it is probable that a present obligation arising from past events will result in an
outflow of funds and the amount of the obligation may be reliably estimated. Significant estimates are required
in order to comply with applicable accounting practices. Group's management makes estimates of the
likelihood of the contingencies and the amount of the liability to be settled in the future, evaluating all relevant
information and facts.

Concession Contracts

In order to determine if concession contracts are under IFRIC 12 scope, the Group performs a detailed
analysis over each concession contract, based on the available information and all the relevant terms included
under such documents. The main issues considered by this analysis are:
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a) |If the grantor controls o regulates those services to which the concessionaire must allocate the
infrastructure, to whom these services must be rendered and at what price.

b) If the grantor controls any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the concession
contract,

Likewise, based on information analysis and available information for each contract, the Group determines the
accounting model to apply:

sIntangible asset model: the Group applies this model when the operator has a right to receive tolls (or
other payments) from users in consideration for the financing and construction of the infrastructure,
or whenever the concession grantor remunerates the concession operator on the basis of the extent
of use of the infrastructure, but with no guarantees as to the amounts that will be paid to the operator,

eFinancial Asset model: the Group applies this model when the operator has an unconditional contractual
right to receive payments from the grantor, irrespective of the infrastructure use.

*Mixed model: when the operator is remunerated partly by users (which amount is dependent on the
extent of use of the infrastructure), and partly by the grantor (covered by an unconditional right to
receive payments).

Once the accounting model has been determined, there are some key estimations / assumptions used by the
management, for example:
s Traffic estimations to calculate amortization of intangible assets (Highway concessions).
=Provision for major maintenance: estimations of future CAPEX according to each concessions business
plan is used by management.
*Construction margin estimated by management used to measure the fair value of intangible / financial
assets,
=Management estimates when determining the financial asset value, according to electric transmissions
lines contract terms and legal interpretations, that the entities will be compensated by the grantor with
the residual value of the infrastructure at the end of the concessions term.

For concession projects where license are still pending to be obtained (as is the case of Uttar Pradesh
transmission line in India) the Group applies IFRIC 12 accounting when, according to management estimation
and lawyers opinion, it is probable to obtain the licenses in the near future.

Recovery of deferred tax assets

The recovery of deferred tax assets (Note 19) is evaluated at the time they are generated and subsequently at
each balance sheet date, in accordance with the development of the Group's profits projected in its business
plan.

Deferred income

According to the requirements of IFRS, the official grants are recognized in the accounts when there is
reasonable certainly that the associated conditions will be met and the grants will be received. The grants and
assistance granted to the group are subject to several conditions. The Group continually evaluates
expectations of compliance with all of the conditions established for obtaining all the above-mentioned grants
and considers that they have been met or will be met without any problem that would require the Company to

return part or all of the assistance granted. All grants are therefore recognized at 31 December 2012 (Note
10).
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The Group, through its subsidiary Grupo T-Solar Global, S.A. has obtained several grants to finance its
investments. Given the different characteristics of each of the subsidies and credits received by the Group,
Management uses its judgment to calculate their amounts in those cases in which the grants relate to
interests-free loans. In these situations, Management calculates the implicit interest on these loans by using
an effective market interest rate to obtain the fair value of the loans. The difference between the nominal value
and the fair value of the loans is considered to be deferred revenues that will be taken to the income
statement in accordance with the item being financed by the loans. If the interest-free loan is used to acquire
an asset, the deferred revenue is taken to the income statement over the useful life of the asset concerned. If
the interest-free loan is related to operating expenses, the deferred income is taken to the income statement
at the time the expense is realized.

6. Financial information by activities and geographical areas

The group operates by the following lines of business:

eElectric Transmission lines: concession for the electrical infrastructures such as high-voltage
transmission lines and energy transformation stations mainly operates in Brazil, India and USA.

eHighways: concession for land infrastructures such a as motorways, operates in India, Mexico, Spain
and Brazil.

eSolar energy: generation or production of renewable energies through photovoltaic plants technology
and related to the generation of electricity, mainly operates in Spain.

=General: general business unit includes the holding information and information from other non operative
subholdings. This information is included in the geographical areas analysis according to the area in
which each subholding operates.

Set out below the financial information by activities at December 31, 2012:

Electric
December 31, 2012 Transmission | Highways SolarEnergy | General Total
Lines
Revanue/ Sales 63,145 83,670 7.040 15 153,870
Operating results 17,021 18,640 (13,383) (5,682) 16,596
Net Financial Resulfs (17,748) (19,157) (9.357) | (12,891) (59,153)
Profit before income tax (727) (517) (22,740) [ (18,573) (42,557)
Income tax (8B3) 2,666 7,779 (1) 9,561
Profit for the year (1,610) 2,149 (14,961) | (18,574) (32,9986)
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As well as, set out bellow the financial information by geographical areas where the Group operates:

December 31, 2012 Netherlands | Spain Brazil | Mexico India Usa Other | Total
Revenue/ Sales - 5.967 | 98,737 6.641 37.404 - 5.121 | 153,870
Operating results (1.432) | (16.986) | 25.573 3.998 4.237 (404) | 1.610| 16.598
Net Financial Results (16.316) (7.521) | (24.996) | (8.698) (1.618) (4) - | (69.153)
Prefit before income tax (17.748) | (24.507) 577 | (4.700) 2619 | (408) | 1.610 | (42.557)
Income tax - 10.329 | 2.906 (579) (865) -] (2.230)| 9.561
Profit for the year (17.748) | (14.178) 3.483| (5.279) 1.754 |  (408) (620) | (32.998)
Under *Other" mainly correspond to Italy, Peru, Cyprus and Sudafrica.

7. Property, plant and equipment
Set out below is a breakdown of property, plant and equipment showing movements:
Consolidated
Facilities
Solar Technical under
Land electricity Facilities construction
and production under and
2012 Building facilities construction | prepayments Other Total
Cost
June 13, 2012 - - - - -
Additions to
Consolidation Scope 453 1,651,394 191,631 23,081 22,502 1,888,061
Additions 40 13,679 48,000 5,523 449 67,691
Disposals - - - (3,759) (527) (4,286)
Transfer - 16,718 (16,718) - -
Translation
Differences Effect (10) 33,742 - (415) 1,194 34,511
31 December 483 1,715,533 239,631 7,712 23,618 1,986,977
Accumulated
Depreciation
June 13, 2012 - - = = 2
Additions to
Consolidation Scope - (218,197) = - (5,431) (223,628)
Additions - (12,297) - - (1,080) (13,377)
Impairment - - - (3,653) - (3,653)
Disposals - - a - 11 11
Translation
Differences Effect . (4,086) - % (48) (4,134)
31 December - (234,580) - (3,653) (6,548) 244,781
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[Netbookvalue |  483| 1,480,953 | 239, 631 | 4059  170m0] 174219

At October 29, 2012 the Group incorporated US$ 1,665,433 thousand as property, plant and equipment as a
result of the addition to consolidated scope described in note 1.

Property, plant and equipment is mainly formed by Solar electricity production facilities which includes the
investment in assets of the 46 photovoltaic plants (34 located in Spain, 8 in Italy, 2 in India and 2 in Peru) with
a power of 168 megawatts in Spain and Italy, 44 megawatts in Peru and 17 megawatts in India that annually
produce 315 gigawatts per hour (GWh) of clean energy. Additionally, under this caption it is also included
PLA's (Permits, licenses and authorizations) whose carrying value at 31 December 2012 totals approximately
US$ 138,500 thousand, administrative items (office supplies and furniture or data-processing equipment) and
technical facilities used by those concessionaires included under these consolidated financial statements.

Additions shown under the caption “Facilities under construction and prepayments” mainly corresponds to the
development of a solar photovoltaic plant in Unites States of America which started in 2012.

Technical facilities mainly correspond to the Wind Energy Transmission Texas, LLC. project, consisting of an
indefinite build, operation and maintenance contract for 5 electrical substations, 7 transmission lines and 2
special items. At the end of the period the elements are under construction.

As of December 31, 2012, impairment charges have been registered in relation to GTS's solar plants
amounting to US$ 3,653 thousand.

Companies included under these consolidated financial statements have taken a number of insurance policies

to cover risks relating to property, plant and equipment. The coverage provided by these policies is considered
to be sufficient (Note 29),

No significant property, plant and equipment is subject to ownership restrictions or pledged to secure liabilities
except for Real guarantees that may be provided to BBVA, Caixanova and Banesto, the banks granting the
syndicated loans, and to Caixa Bank, Banco Santander, Bankia, BIIS, FMO, Proparco and Opic for the loans
received (Note 18) for the industrial facilities that are owned by certain subsidiaries named in these credit
agreements. The carrying value of the assets linked to these guarantees at 31 December 2012 is US$
1,331,000 thousand.

For the period ended at December 31, 2012 US$ 2,175 thousand have been capitalized, related to interest
accrued during the construction of non-current assets arising on direct financing received to build property,
plant and equipment.

At 31 December 2012, the Group has the majority of the property, plant and equipment located outside
Netherlands.

The aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

December 31,

2012

No later than 1 year 5467
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 11,246
Later than 5 years 41,059
57,772
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The expense recognized in the Income Statement during 2012 in relation to operating leases totals US$ 4,287
thousand.

The assets covered by operating leases relate to the offices and land on which the T Solar Group's operating
companies place the solar plants. The land leases are in force for a minimum period ranging between 25 and
40 years, with an option to renew. These contracts have increase clauses linked to the CPI.

8. Intangible assets — Goodwill

Amounts included under this heading are as follows:

2012 Goodwill
Cost

Opening Balance -
Additions to Consolidation Scope 54,527
Translation Differences Effect 993
31 December 55,520

Goodwill, the only intangible asset with an indefinite useful life, derives mainly from the business combination
in 2011 involving the purchase of additional interest of T-Solar Group which resulted in the acquisition of
contral by Grupo Isolux Corsan, S.A.

The goodwill was assigned to the Group's following cash generating unit (CGU):

December 31,

ccu 2012
Photovoltaic plants 55,520
Total 55,520

Photovoltaic Plants

The amount recoverable from the CGU's is determined based on the calculation of the value-in-use in
accordance with pre-tax cash flow projections deriving from best financial estimations performed by Directors,
based on estimated useful lives. Flows are discounted using a rate based on the weighted average cost of
capital for the CGL.

The key assumptions used to calculate the most relevant value-in-use are as follows:

December 31, 2012
cGu Cash flows (*) Discount rate

Photovoltaic plants 23,639 7% to 8%

(*) Cash flows relating to the year following that in which the Impairment test is carried out, excluding debt servicing and tax effects,
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8. Intangible assets - other

The breakdown of movements for the period is as follows:

Consolidated
Computer
2012 Concessions software Total

Cost - - -
29 October, 2012

Additions to Consolidation Scope 2,287,961 593 2,288,554
Additions 14,066 - 14,066
Disposals - (11 (11)
Translation Differences Effect (12,785) 2 (12,783)
31 December 2,280,242 584 2,289,826
Accumulated Depreciation - - -
29 QOctober, 2012

Additions to Consolidation Scope (112,680) (127) (112,807)
Additions (8,385) (11) (8,396)
Translation Differences Effect 1,231 (1) 1,230
31 Decernber (119,834) (139) (119,973)

[ Net book value [ 2,169,408 | 445 | 2,169,853 |

The heading “Concessions” includes Concession contractual rights related to the construction and operation

of highways infrastructure.

The heading Computer software records the applications acquired by the Group to manage the Group from a

financial and production standpoint.

For the period ended at December 31, 2012 US$ 11,235 thousand have been capitalized, related to interest
accrued during the construction of non-current assets arising on direct financing received to build the

infrastructure,

Additions mainly correspond to the constructions works related to Soma Isolux Surat Hazira Tollway PVT,

LTD and in Soma Isolux Kishangarh-Ajmer-Beawar Tollway PVT, LTD.
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At 31 December 2012, projects under this caption mainly correspond to the following concessions:

Investments Millions
| ofuss
Total
Toll Sltuation at December | Maturity | Year Start Year | Planned | Outstanding
Concession Country Charge 31, 2012 (years) | award | Explotation # works (#4) Units

HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE
Autovia A-4 (**) Spain Shadow® Operating 18 2007 2010 121 63,72km
Panipat-Jalandar (*) India User Oparaling/ Construction 14 M 2008 2009 823 274 291,10km
Surat Hazira (**) India User Construction 181" 2000 2013 229 81 132,91km
Kishangarh-Ajmer-Beawar (**) India User Construction 17@ 2009 2013 128 8 93km
Varanasi Aurangabad (%) India User Operating/ Construction 29 2010 2011 315 169 192 4km
Moenterrey Saltilio (**) Mexico User Operating 30 ™ 2008 2009 334 - 451km
Perote-Xalapa (**) Mexico User Operating 45" 2008 2012 407 - 59km
Viabahia de Rodovlas (*) Brazil User Operating/ Construction 24 2008 2010 850 377  680,6km

(*) Brownfield project: concession regarding extension and improvement works of

activities are carried on since the concession implementation (when most of investme

(**) Greenfleld project: concession re

since the construction is finished,

(8) The concession grantor remunerates the concession o

an existing path, in which operatlon and maintenance
nts in construction works are outstanding yet),

garding construetion works of a new path, in which operation and maintenance activities are earried an

no guarantees as to the amounts that will be paid to the operator.

(1) The concession period may be medified depending on the traffic level achieved on 2018,
(2) The concession period may be medified depending on the traffic level achiaved on 2021,

(3) The concession perled may be extended to 45 years,

(4) The concession period was extended to 45 years on June 14, 2011,

(#) Total planned investments in such concessions

(Appendix II).

pursuant to the concession agreement's amendment detailed below In this nota.

perator on the basis of the extent of use of the infrastructure by the users, but with

performed through joint ventures are shown based on its ownership percentage

(##) Outstanding works detailed in brownfield projects do not include the pending eonstruction works recorded as other payables (Note 17).

Set out below is a description of each concession project:

- Autovia A-4: Concession obtained for improvement, expansion and maintenance of an existing road (Autovia
A-4) through Sociedad Concesionaria Autovia A-4 Madrid, 8.A., included in Appendix |. The concession
started to operate partially in 2010, and the whole concession was operating as at December 31, 2011, On 9
June 2011, economic and financial rebalancing in the company, was approved due to the over costs incurred
in relation to additional construction works not considered at first under the concession project. These costs
were recognized by Public Administration and amount to US$ 22.987 thousand. The approval represented an
increase in the concession scope. As a result of the above-mentioned re-balancing, the company got a
subordinated loan to fund additional construction works. This credit covered the estimated costs for that
works, as well as a rate increase which would allow to get additional income.

- Panipat-Jalandar: Concession obtained to the extension, improvement, operation and maintenance of an
existing toll road in India (Panipat-Jalandar NH1 Highway) through the subsidiary Soma-Isolux NH One
Tollway Private Limited, included in Appendix |. Construction works regarding extension and improvement for
the existing path (operation and maintenance activities are carried on since the concession implementation)
began in 2009. The concession is a Brownfield Project, so it started generating income when most of the
investments to be done regarding construction works remained outstanding. During all concession period the
company shall pay to the Authority a sum of 1 rupee per annum by way of revenue sharing. Additionally,
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during the first year of concession period the company pays to the Authority an additional fee of 20,14% over
the revenues (existing a minimum PCU "Passenger Car Unit" of 41.414); each year the fee will increase by
1% over the annual revenues. Since May 2009 the earnings will be calculated over a minimum “"Passenger
Car Unit" of 41.414. This minimum will increase each year by 2%.

It has to be pointed out that the subsidiary Soma-lsclux NH One Tollway Private Limited has submitted
several claims to the NHAI demanding for the economic and financial rebalancing, as the project has suffered
significant delays and has incurred in over costs due to several causes (such as, delays in obtaining of
environmental licenses, expropriations, etc.). As well, the company is registering lower traffic levels than
expected in the tender, because the tollbooths are not properly located, and the Authorities have not provided
the permission to change them yet, even if it is a contractual right the company has under the concession
agreement. As a result, additionally, the company is resulting in a shortfall in concession fee for NHAI, and so
it is paying minimum amounts of PCUs established in the concession contract as revenue sharing.

- Surat-Hazira: Concession obtained to the construction, operation and maintenance of a toll road in India
(Surat-Hazira NH-6 highway) through the joint venture Soma Isolux Surat Hazira Tollway Pwvt, Ltd., included in
Appendix Il. This concession includes the right to receive tolls from users during the operating period, as well
as an unconditional contractual right to receive payments from the grantor up to 556 crores (US$ 101,303
thousand), the drawn amount at 31 December, 2012 is 78 crores (US$ 14,212 thousand). During all

concession period the company shall pay to the Authority a sum of 1 rupee per annum by way of revenue
sharing.

- Kishangarh-Aimer-Beawar: Concession obtained to the construction, operation and maintenance of a toll
road in India (Kishangarh-Aimer Beawar NH-8 highway) through the joint venture Soma Isolux Kishangarh-
Ajmer-Beawar Tollway PVT, Ltd., included in Appendix Il. Construction works began on 2010. This concession
includes the right to receive tolls from users during the operating period. During the third year of concessions
the company will pay to the authorities an annual fee of 2% over the revenues of the year, as revenue sharing,
(existing a minimum "Passenger Car Unit" of 45,976); each year this fee will increase by 1% over the annual
revenues. The earnings will be calculated over a minimum "Passenger Car Unit" of 45.976, that will increase
each year by 2%. During all concession period the company shall pay to the Authority a sum of 1 rupee per
annum by way of revenue sharing.

- Varanasi-Aurangabad: Concession obtained to the extension, improvement, operation and maintenance of
an existing toll road in India (Varanasi-Aurangabad NH-2 highway) through the joint-venture Soma lsolux
Varanasi Aurangabad Tollway, Pvt. Ltd., included in Appendix |l. The concession is a Brownfield Project, so
the company has begun operating path in October 2011 while most of construction works are outstanding yet.
During all concession period the company shall pay to the Authority a sum of 1 rupee per annum by way of
concession fee. This concession includes the right to receive tolls from users during operating period, as well
as an unconditional contractual right to receive from the grantor up to 565 crores (US$102.943 thousand).

- Monterrey-Sallillo: Concession regarding construction, operation and maintenance of a toll road in Mexico
(Monterrey Saltillo) through the subsidiary Concesionaria Autopista Monterrey-Saltillo, S.A. de C.V., included
in Appendix |. The concession was fully in operation at December 31, 2011. On 26 November 2012,
Monterrey-Saltillo's highway fifth amendment on concession was granted. The amendment states the 15-year
extension of the concession validity (to 45 years), whenever the Concessionaire proves that it is required to
recover the amounts to which it was entitled under the original terms of the tender project.

- Perote-Xalapa: Concession for the construction, operation and maintenance of two toll road sections in
Mexico (Perote-Banderilla and Libramiento de Xalapa) through the joint-venture Concesionaria Autopista
Perote-Xalapa, S.A. de C.V.,, included in Appendix II. The concession started to operate partially in July, 2012,
and the whole concession was operating as at December 31, 2012,
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- Viabahia de Rodovias: Concession obtained to the extension, improvement, operation and maintenance of
four foll-road sections in Brazil (BR-116/BA, BR-324/BA, BA526 and BAS528) through the subsidiary Viabahia
Concessiondria de Rodovias, S.A., included in Appendix |. The concession is a Brownfield Project, so the
company begun operating the existing path in December 2010, while most of construction works are
outstanding yet. Main investments in construction works are expected to take place from 2011 to 2018,

10. Financial Investments
Set out below is an analysis of financial investments assets:

December 31, 2012

Non-Current Current Total
Marketable securities and other deposits 71,270 35,986 107,256
Financial Investments 71,270 35,986 107,256

Marketable securities and other deposits that correspond available for sale instruments to linked deposits
which guarantees financial debt. The companies must maintain the deposit during the finance agreement life
or at least during construction phase, in favour of the lender credit entities. Therefore, despite its liquid nature,
they are classified as non-current assets and current assets dependig on the maturity.

11.  Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are analyzed below at 31 December 2012

Assets Liabilities
Interest rate swaps-cash flow Hedges - 262,291
Cross currency swap-held for Trading 2,242 -
Total 2,242 262,291
Less non-current portion:
Interest rate swaps —cash flow Hedges - (232,161)
Cross currency swap-held for Trading - -
Non-current portion - 232,161
Current portion 2,242 30,130

Derivatives held for trading are carried as current assets. The total fair value of a hedging derivative is
classified as a non-current asset if the period to maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months and as a
current assets if the period to maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.

The maximum credit risk exposure at the reporting date is the fair value of the derivative financial instruments
carried in the balance sheet.

Financial instrument balances under this caption are classified in Group 2 for the purpose of information
sources used to determine its fair value in compliance with IFRS 7.
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Interest rate swaps

At 31 December 2012, gains and losses recognized in the hedging reserve in Equity (net of tax effects and
Naon controlling Interest) with respect to interest rates swaps amounts to a loss of US$ 82,536 thousand and
will be taken to the income statement on a continuous basis until bank borrowings are repaid.

The effective portion recognized in the hedging reserve in equity (net of tax effect) amounts to US$ (25,444)
thousand minus the tax effect recorded as tax deferred asset amounting to 7,633 thousand euro.
The settlement of these derivatives generated a profit totaling US$ 6,085 thousand

At December 31, 2012, non-current and current liabilities derivatives include hedging interest rate swap
instruments that amounts US$ 262,291 thousand.

Set out below is an analysis of the main interest rate swaps in force at 31 December 2012:

Fixed Variable
interest rate | Interest rate

Name Contract date | Final maturity | Notional value (1) {paid) (charged)
Bank loan Wett Holding 31/08/2011 31/03/2016 | 18,182 thousand USD 1.96% Libor

115,093 thousand
Bank loan Watt Wind Energy 02/08/2011 31/03/2016 usD 1.91% Libor
Bank loan Concesionaria 2,290,177 thousand
Saltillo Monterrey 30/05/2007 30/05/2025 mexican peso B8.20% TIE*
Bank loan Sociedad
Concesionaria Autovia A-4 01/08/2008 16/06/2025 57,315 thousand euro 5.05% Euribor
Bank loan Concesionaria 3,745,713 thousand
Perote-Xalapa 13/02/2008 14/01/2022 mexican paso B8.20% TIE*
Syndicated loan GTS from NG
Banco 22/12/2008 31/12/2026 | 39,014 thousand euro 3.96% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from 102,986 thousand
BBVA 15/07/2008 31M12/2027 auro 5.08% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from
BBVA 15/09/2008 31/12/2027 | 29,870 thousand auro 4.75% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from 107,401 thousand
BBVA 15/09/2008 3112/2027 euro 4.78% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from
BBVA 28/11/2008 31/12/2027 6,414 thousand euro 4.33% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from
BBVA 28/11/2008 31M12/2027 | 62,167 thousand euro 4.11% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from 131,006 thousand
BBVA 28/11/2008 311212027 euro 4.42% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from
BBVA 28/11/2008 31/12/2027 8,694 thousand euro 4,29% Euribor
Loan GTS from La Caixa 18/06/2009 18/06/2021 8,694 thousand euro 4.09% Euribor
Santander loan GTS 04/06/2009 04/12/2023 6,328 thousand euro 4.00% Euribor
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Syndicated loan GTS from

Banesto 11/01/2011 20/12/2023 3,409 thousand euro 3.45% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from

Banesto 11/03/2011 20/12/2023 1,938 thousand euro 3.68% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from

Banasto 11/01/2011 20/12/2023 4,739 thousand euro 3.45% Euribor

Fixed Variable
interest rate | interest rate

Name Contract date | Final maturity | Notional value (1) (paid) (charged)
Syndicated loan GTS from

Banesto 22/12/2010 20/12/2023 | 21,132 thousand euro 3.54% Euribor
Bankia loan GTS 18/03/2010 23/04/2026 2,017 thousand euro 3.65% Euribor
Raggio di Puglia loan GTS 25/01/2012 20/06/2029 | 14,777 thousand euro 2.73% Euribor

(*) Mexican long-term reference interest rate
(1) The notional value is the derivative's proportional nominal value which is signed to the future at the specified date.

Cross currency Swap

Viabahia Concessionaria de Rodovias
(R$ 12,549) to convert a fix interest ra

. S.A. has contracted a cross currency swap related to a loan in US$
le to a variable interest rate based on DI, and to fix the exchange rate

between Brazilian Reais and USD at the maturity date of the loan (June 2013). The fair value of the derivative
at December 31, 2012 amounts to US$ 2,242 thousand.

12. Trade and other receivables

Set out below is an analysis of consolidated Trade and other receivables:

Non-current

Advanced payments to suppliers for construction services
Trade receivables - Financial assets (IFRIC 12)

December 31, 2012

59,543
1,660,665

Loans to group and related parties (Note 30)
Trade receivables

Current

Trade receivables for sales and services

Trade receivables - Financial assets (IFRIC 12)
Receivables from related parties (Note 30)

Loans to group and related parties (Note 30)

Sundry debtors

Employees

PIS/COFINS and other receivable taxes

Short-term accruals

Advanced payments to suppliers for construction services

62,769
27,818

1,810,795

16,690
111,587
212
355,678
75,815
74
49,401
(13)
178,835
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788,279

At October 29, 2012 the Group incorporated US$ 781,147 thousand as current Trade and other receivables
and US$ 1,737,601 thousand non-current trade and other receivables as a result of the addition to
consolidated scope described in note 1.

For current trade and other receivables nominal values are deemed to approximate fair values.

The amount recorded under the heading "Trade receivables for sales and services" at 31 December 2012,
relates to the electricity sales made by the photovoltaic business subsidiaries that own the rights and permits
to generate and sell electricity. The Group's main customers, for such a business unit, at 31 December 2012
are the National Energy Commission (CNE) and GDF Suez Energia Espaiia, S.A.U.. Additionally, it also
includes accounts receivables relating to toll revenues and transmission lines income. The amount recorded
under the heading “Receivables from related parties” for US$ 376,301 thousand relates to the ordinary shares
issued on 29 October, 2012, by Grupo Isolux Corsan Concesiones, S.L and Infra-PSP Canada Inc., both
outstanding payment (Note 14),

"Trade receivables - Financial assets" include receivables related to transmission line concession contracts in
Brazil and India. According to applicable accounting practices and in compliance with IFRIC 12 in respect to
such kind of contracts, accounts receivable are classified through the financial asset model. Non-current
recelvable are recognized at amortized cost. The range of interest rates used (without considering inflation) is
between 2% and 18% for 2012 depending on each transmission line.

Set out below is a summary of the Brazilian and Indian concessionaires in which IFRIC 12 — financial asset
model- is applied:

Maturity | Year Start Year Rvstmeut Mitions of Uss
Concession Situation " Total Outstanding Units
B (years) award Explotation Planned (#) Worka

g?choelra Paulista Trans. Energia, S.A. Operating 10 2002 2004 98 i (1’5%1(}}:(?)
Jauru Transmissora de Energla, S.A, Operating/ }
» construction 30 2007 2009 87 949km(230kv)
Isnﬁrlzgggau Elétrica Norte & Nordeste, Operating 30 2007 2011 142 ) (7'5%%‘:::])
Linhas de Xingu Transmissora de ; 572km
Energia, S.A. (*) Construction 30 2008 2012 633 62 (500kv)
'ém%ﬁ adeshga?f')pa Transmissora de Construction 30 2008 2012 562 23 (”5510%}:;1)
ggﬂ::j_&sl‘_t%’:;;:“w“’ Transmission | construction | 25(* | 2011 2014 805 709 1{?350“:’)"
Iémra:;sladﬁ)“umé Transmissora de Gonatiicsn 30 2011 2014 157 155 (254070:2:*;

(#) Total planned investments in such concesslons performed through joint ventures are shown basad on its ownership percentage

(Appendix II),

(") Appendix |

(**) Appendix Il

(***) The concession period might be extended to 35 years, subject to the approval of the Appropriate Commission.

56




W

ISOLUX

~= |nfrastructure

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

At 31 December 2012, the Group has 7 concessions, 3 of which are being operated, and the other 4 are under
construction,

In 2011, the Group won the Ultar Pradesh Electricity Regulatory Commission "UPERC" tender for the
construction, operation and maintenance of a 765kv and 1,600 Km electric transmission line in India.
However, at 31 December 2012 the subsidiary concessionaire company South East U.P. Power Transmission
Company Limited has not obtained the transmission license from the grantor yet due to some outstanding
procedures, as it was provided in the Transmission Service Agreement signed between the long term
customers and the concessionaire company on 20th January 2011. Company's Directors, based on the last
communications with UPERC and on their lawyers’ opinion, consider that it is highly probable to obtain the
transmission license during the next months, and that this fact will not impact significantly to the project
profitability and to the expected operating date.

As well, during 2012, significant construction costs overruns have arisen in relation to Xingu and Macapa
transmission line projects. These costs overrun, mainly due to delays on the obtaining of licenses and
environmental additional requirements and modifications to the original technical characteristics of the
projects, result in an increase of construction works cost in an approximate amount of US$ 171 million (350
million of brazilian reais) over the construction investment originally estimated, which are attributable and are
being assumed by the concessionaire companies (notwithstanding the concessionaires will claim against the
grantor). At 31 December 2012, costs overruns amounting to 87 million USD (178 million of reais) have
already been incurred by the subsidiaries, and the outstanding amount is expected to be incurred during first
half of 2013, as the transmission lines will start approximately operating in April 2013.

Considering the significant overruns arisen, the Group is preparing a claim against the grantor, demanding for
economic and financial rebalancing, in order to obtain an additional revenue to cover the costs overruns. The
claims will also include amounts due to financial costs overruns (due mainly to the delays during construction

phase) and other concepts as the lost of concessional cash flows regarding the delay reaching the operational
date.

Nevertheless, at 31 December 2012, all estimated costs overruns have been recognized by the Group as
construction expenses, without recognizing any revenue related to them since the claim is in progress and the
negotiation have not reached an advanced stage yet such that it is probable that the grantor will accept the
claim . Therefore, the company has recognized a liability under “Provisions for other liabilities and charges”
(Note 20) which includes the outstanding works to be incurred during 2013.

The amount recorded under the heading of current "PIS/COFINS and other receivables taxes" at 31
December 2012 mainly relates to tax credits arose during the construction phase due to assets acquisitions
that will be compensated during the monthly billing along the concessions terms and to Value Added Tax
(Input VAT), that relates to the investments made by the Group to build the plants.

Under "Advanced payments to suppliers for construction services" caption are included US$ 130,802
thousand to related parties (Note 30).
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For all the companies included in these Financial Statements, a breakdown of "Trade receivables - Financial
assets IFRIC 12" is shown below:

December 31, 2012

Non-Current Current

Cachoeira Paulista Trans, Energia, 5,A, 135,528 25,596
Jauru Transmissora de Energia, 5,A, 85,240 4,568
Interligag&o Elétrica Norte e Mordeste, S A, 156,437 8,244
Linhas de Xingu Transmissora de Energia, 5,A, 612,279 35,913
Linhas de Macapa Transmissora de Energia, S.A, 563,924 37,266
South East U.P. Power Transmission Company Ltd. 104,483 -
Linhas de Taubaté Transmissora de Energia 2,774 -

1,660,665 111,587

The balance of trade and other receivables includes the following amounts denominated in currencies other
than the US$:

December 31,

2012

Thousands of Thousands of

Currency Local Currancy US dollar
Euro 50,869 67,116
Brazilian Reais 3,732,920 1,823,160
Mexican Peso 172,951 13,339
Indian Rupee 15,356,861 279,802

2,183.417

The caption "Advanced payments to suppliers for construction services” mainly records the amounts paid from
South East U.P. Power Transmission Company Ltd. and Linhas de Taubaté Transmissora de Energia to their
related parties suppliers for construction services, ICl C&C Mainpuri JV and Isolux Projetos e Instalages,
respectively, (See Note 30). Nominal values are deemed to approximate fair value as it is expected that
suppliers related parties are going to perform construction works in the short term.
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13. Cash and cash equivalents
Set out below is a breakdown of consolidated cash and cash equivalents:

December 31, 2012

Cash at bank and in hand 280,737
Short-term bank deposits and other 75,618
356,355

This caption includes cash (cash in hand and demand deposits in banks) and cash equivalents (i.e., short-
term highly liquid investments easily convertible into specific cash amounts within a maximum of three
manths, or with any restriction and availability penalty if higher, and whose value is not subject to significant
change risks).

The Group incorporated at October 29, 2012 US$ 381,544 thousand as a result of the addition to consolidated
scope described in note 1.

Cash and cash equivalents include balances in currencies other than US$ totalling US$ 322,021 thousand.
During the period, the main operations not involving cash and cash equivalents movements are as follows:

» The contribution of businesses to Isolux Infrastructure Netherlands, B.V. (Note 1).
* Capital increases performed in relation to the outstanding payments (Notes 12 and 14)

For the purposes of the cash flow statements, the treasury balance includes the balance in the caption cash
and cash equivalents,

In 2012 the effective interest rate for cash equivalents ranged between 0.01% and 8.89%

The cash balances maintained by Group that are restricted, i.e. are not freely available, have been classified
as "Financial Investments" (Note 10).

14.  Share Capital and Carrying value adjustments
141 Share Capital

The parent company was incorporated as for an indefinite period on June 13, 2012 with an initial shares
capital of € 18,000.00 (eighteen thousand euros) through the issue of 18,000 fully paid shares . All of the
same class and series, numbered sequentially from 1 to 18,000, all bearing the same voting and dividend
rights, subscribed by Grupo Isolux Corsan Concesiones, S.L.

On 29 October 2012, the parent company signed a deed of amendment of articles of association to modify the
share capital, through a share split and a conversion of shares. Each share was splitted inte one hundred
shares, with a nominal value of one eurocent (€ 0.01) each; subsequently, each share in the capital of the
parent company with a nominal value of one eurocent (€ 0.01) were converted into one ordinary share in the

capital of the parent company, with a nominal value of one United States dollar cent (US$ 0.01), numbered V1
through V1,800,000.
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As well on 29 October 2012, the following capital increases took place:

The parent company issued 12,181,618 ordinary shares numbered V1,800,001 up to and including
V13,881,618, with a nominal value of one United States dollar cent (US$ 0.01) to Grupo Isolux
Corsan Concesiones, S.L. to pay up in kind the nominal value of each share and the share premium
by way of contribution of intercompany accounts. The total net values of intercompany accounts were
US$ 39,762,408. An amount of US$ 121,816.18 was allocated as payment of the nominal value on
all the shares and the amount exceeding US$ 39,640,592 as share premium.

The parent company issued 299,890,352 ordinary shares numbered V13,981 619 up to and including
V313,871,970 with a nominal value of one United States dollar cent (US$ 0.01) to Grupo Isolux
Corsan Concesiones, S.L. under the obligation for Grupo Isolux Corsan Concesicnes, S.L. to pay in
kind the nominal value of each share and the share premium by way of contribution as follows: (i)
2,535,311 shares fully subscribed an paid up, each with a par value of € 10 of the share capital of
Isolux Corsan Concesiones, S.A.U,, (ii) 65,434,220 shares fully subscribed and paid up each with a
par value of € 0.5 of the share capital of Grupo T-Solar Global, S.A. and (iif) 545,910 shares fully
subscribed an paid up, each with a par value of € 10 of the share capital of Isolux Corsan
Concesiones de Infraestructuras S.L.U. The amount of the total value of contribution shares were
US$ 1,1989,566,401.8. An amount of US$ 2,998,903.52 was allocated as payment of the nominal
value on all the shares and the amount exceeding US$ 1,196,567 498 .31 as share premium,

The general meeting of shareholders of the parent company resolved to issue 78,462,500 ordinary
shares numbered V313,871,971 up to an including V392,334,470 each share with a nominal value of
one United States dollar cent (US$ 0.01) fully subscribed by Infra-PSP Canada Inc. amounting to
US$ 784,625 of wich US$ 588,469 were outstanding payment and the share premium amounting to
US$ 313,065,375 outstanding payment too.

The parent company issued 15,686,851 ordinary shares numbered V392,334,471 up to and including
V408,021,321, with a nominal value of one United States dollar cent (US$ 0.01) to Grupo Isolux
Corsan Concesiones, S.L. The twenty-five per cent of the nominal value of each share, being a total
of US$ 39,217.13 were fully paid, and US$ 117,651.38 as outstanding payment. The share premium
were US$ 62,590,534.29 outstanding payment too.

The share capital at December 31, 2012 is as follows:

Share Capital

No. of shares US$ thousand

Grupo Isolux Corsan Concesiones, S.L. 329,558,821 3,295
Infra-PSP Canda Inc. 78,462,500 785
Total 408,021,321 4,080

The share capital outstanding payment amounts to US$ 706 thousand.
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14.2 Share premium

This is an unrestricted reserve. As of 31 december 2012, the breakdown of the share premium is as follows:

US$ thousand
Grupo Isolux Corsén Concesiones, S.L. 1,298,799
Infra-PSP Canda Inc. 313,065
Total 1,611,864

14.3 Carrying value adjustments

Other Carrying value adjustments mainly correspond to the difference amounting to US$ 456,136 thousand
arising from book values of the subsidiaries contributed by Grupo Isolux Corsan Concesiones S.L. as paid in
kind of the subscribes share capital mentioned in note 14.1 and values used for the contributions, and the
expenses relating to share capital increases amounting to US$ 13,147 thousand.
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15. Cumulative translation differences

A breakdown by company/subgroup of eumulative translation differences is set out below:

Company December 31, 2012
Cachoeira Paulista Transmissora de Energia, S.A. (741)
Concesionaria Autopista Monterrey-Saltilla, S.A.de C.V. 741
Concesionaria Autopista Perote Xalapa S.A. de C.V, 046
Grupo T-Solar Global, S.A. 5,331
ICC Sandpiper, B.V. 911
Integracao Electrica Norte e Nordeste, S.A. (735)
Isolux Corsan Brasilefia de Infraestructuras, S.L.U. (178)
Isclux Corsdn Concesiones de Infraestructuras, S.L.U. (673)
Isolux Corsan Concesiones, S.A.L. (4,370)
Isolux Corsan Concessions Cyprus Limited 129
Isolux Corsén Concesslons India Privated Limited 1,744
Iselux Corsan Concesslons Infraestructures Holland, B.V. 115
Isolux Corsan Energy Cyprus Limited (291)
Isolux Corsan NH1 Cyprus Limited (551)
Isolux Corsdn Paricipagdes de Infraestructuras, Lida (1)
Isolux Corsén Paricipagdes na Viabahia, Lida 247
Isolux Corsan Power Concessions India Private Limited 316
Isolux Energla e Parlicipagties, S.A, (138)
Isolux Infrastructure Netherlands B.V. (Sucursal Spain) (12)
Jauru Transmissora de Energla, S.A. (268)
Linhas de Macapa Transmissora de Energla, S.A. (414)
Linhas de Taubaté Transmissora de Energia, SA (7)
Linhas de Xingu Transmissora de Energla, S.A. (3786)
Mainpuri Power Transmission Private Limited 33
Operadora Autopista Perote Xalapa S.A, de C.V. 1
Plena Operagdo e Manuntengéo de Transmission de Energia (4)
Sociedad Concesionaria Autovia A-4 Madrid S.A. 94
Soma Isolux Surat Hazira Tollway Private Limited (551)
Sorna Isolux Surat Kishangarh - Ajmer -Beawar Private Limited (2,329)
Soma Isolux Varanasi Aurangabad Tollway Private Limited (655)
Soma-lsolux NH One Tollway Private Limited (1,038)
South East Ultar Pradesh Power Transmission (358)
Viabahia Concessionaria de Rodovias S.A. (326)
Vias Administracién y Logistica, S.A. de G.V. 4
TOTAL (3,398)
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16. Non-controlling interests

Mevements in non controlling interests during the period are set out below;

Additions to Change In

consolidation Share of shareholding Closing
Investees Scope profitlosses  and others balance
Sociedad Concesionaria Auto. A4, S.A. - (4,600) 483 (246) (4,363)
Soma-Isolux NH Cne Tollway Pvt. Lida. - 51,745 (710) (996) 50,038
Viabahia Concessionaria de Rodovias, 8.A. - 19,715 2,065 ('140) 21,640
Mainpuri Fower Transfission Private Limited - 6,566 (30) 2,700 9,236
Grupo T Solar Global, 5.A. - 234 412 (10,445) (2,038) 221,931
South East Up Power Transmission - - 5 (139) (139)
Total ¥ 307,838 (8,637) (857) 298,344

17.  Trade and other payables

Set out below is a breakdown of trade and other payables at December 31, 2012:

Non-current

Long term deferred PIS/COFINS
Borrowings from related parties (Note 30)
Deferred income

Other payables

Total

Current

Borrowings from related parties (Note 30)
Credits from related parties (Note 30)
Suppliers

Outstanding remuneration

Other payables

Total

December 31, 2012

134,985
379,430

40,378
195,799

750,592

38,046
106,485
263,932

5518
285,763

699,744

1,450,336

At October 29, 2012 the Group incorporated US$ 779,542 thousand as current Trade and other payables and
US$ 680,908 thousand non-current trade and other payables as a result of the addition to consolidated scope

described in note 1.

For current trade and other payables nominal values are deemed to approximate fair values.
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The caption "Long term deferred PIS/COFINS" correspond to PIS and COFINS taxes of the Brazilian
transmission energy lines that is related to construction revenue and will revert during the operation with the
monthly billings.

Additionally, under deferred income, the Group records a deferred tax liability deriving from the application of
several tax incentives applied by Parque Solar Saelices, S.L. and to Tax incentives mainly correspond to
environmental deductions which are described in note 19 "Deferred Income Tax" amounting to US$ 40,378
thousand.

On 29 June 2012, as part of the transaction with Public Sector Pension Investment Board (PSP) as described

in Note 1, the parent company, lsolux Infrastructure Netherlands, subscribed two convertible facility
agreements:

=Firstly, a mandatory convertible facility agreement through which PSP makes available to the parent
company a term loan facility of an amount of US§ 313,850 thousand. This amount is fully disposed as of
December 31, 2012, and will mature on 30 June 2017, unless it is previously converted into shares. The
conversion shall be made, provided that certain specified events do not occur (such us, the investment
agreement termination before 31 December 20168, early repayment, a default or relevant event, no
obtaining of regulatory approvals).

The conversion will be made at contractually established ratios, which depends on specific variables as
the net operating income and if new projects has been developed. The loan bears an annual interest rate
of 12,5%, which will be paid every six months. As of December 31, 2012 the loan, measured at
amortized cost, amounts to US$ 321,088 thousand, including outstanding interest payments amounting
to US$ 19,071 thousand.

= Secondly, a mandatory convertible facility agreement through which Grupo Isolux Corsan Concesiones, S.L,
make available to the parent company a term loan facility of an amount of US$ 62,770 thousand. No
amount has been disposed as of December 31, 2012, as it will be disposed once the above mentioned
PSP loan has been fully disbursed. This loan will mature on 30 June 2017, unless it is previously
converted into shares, The conversion shall be made, provided that certain specified events do not eceur
(such us, the investment agreement termination before 31 December 2016, early repayment).

The conversion will be made at contractually established ratios, which depends on specific variables as
the net operating income and if new projects has been developed. The loan bears an annual interest rate
of 12.5%, which will be paid every six months.

At 31 December 2012, “Other payables” include mainly payables related to the intangibles assels recognized
as a result of operation starting of the existing infrastructure in Brazil (Viabahia Concessionaria de Rodovias,
S.A.) and India (Soma Isolux Varanasi Aurangabad Tollway Private Limiled), respeclively. These balances
represent the obligation to provide construction services.

On 18 March 2011, the Group signed an agreement with Morgan Stanley Infrastructure Partner (MSIP), an
infrastructure fund, becoming MSIP a strategic partner in the development of the Group in the Indian
Infrastructure Concession business area. The initial closing of the agreement was reached on May 2011. The
funding provided by MSIP strengthens the financial position of the Group in the Indian Concession
infrastructure area, favoring the subgroups to obtain new projects.

Through this partnership MSIP committed to contribute to the holding company (ICC Sandpiper, B.V.) that

owns the interests in three toll road concession joint ventures (Kishangarh, Surat and Varanasi) an amount
approximately between US$ 106,700 thousand and US$ 258,500 thousand over the next five years depending
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on the number of concession of infrastructure projects obtained by the subgroup in India and will receive in
exchange preferred shares which are convertible into ordinary shares of such holding company. The preferred
shares are convertible to ordinary shares after an initial period of 5 years (or before in case of other certain
specified events such as a breach of contract obligations and exit events as an IPO, a change of control, etc).
The conversion will be made at contractually established ratios which depend on specific circumstances such
as anti-dilutive, indemnity and other clauses in the event of breach of contract obligations.

The Group has the majority in the Board of Directors of ICC Sandpiper although will require authorization from
MSIP for certain key strategic and financing decisions. Therefore, the Company consolidated ICC Sandpiper
subgroup on a proportional consolidation basis as joint venture.

The preferred shares have been classified as compound financial instrument, being the non-derivative
financial liability the main and most significant part. Since the equity component is not significant as of
yearend, the Group has proportionally consolidated Sandpiper subgroup by 100%.

Therefore, the compound instrument has been valuated as a liability, which has been measured at December
31, 2012 at amortized cost using the effective interest method; it will be linked to the value of the three toll
road concessions' shares, so the company reassesses the future cash flows to determine the correct valuation
at each year-end. This value at December 31, 2012 amounts to US$ 75,272 thousand (classified under non-
current other payables).

The capital contributions provided by MSIP to ICC Sandpiper to make capital contributions to the concession
joint ventures amounted to US$ 58,560 thousand, which provides MSIP through preferred convertible shares
with approximately 23.5% of the voting rights of ICC Sandpiper and approximately 55% of economic
ownership.

The balance of trade and other payables includes the following amounts denominated in currencies other than
Uss:

December 31,

2012

Thousands of Thousands of

Currency Local Currency US dollar
Euro 121,683 160,548
Brazilian Reais 1,364,386 666,367
Mexican Peso 385,525 29,734
Indian Rupee 10,790,121 196,596
Peruvian Nuave Sol 4,861 1,908

1,086,153
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18. Borrowings

Non Current

Project Finance

Other Loans

Finance lease liabilities

Current

Project Finance

Other Loans

Finance lease liabilities

Total

December 31,
2012

3,070,035
444,114
100
3,514,248

473,022
31,793
161
504,976
4,019,225

Borrowings relating to finance lease liabilities are secured by the financed assets.

Project finance is often guaranteed by a pledge on the project company's shares granted by its shareholders,
the assignment of debt claims or restrictions on the disposal of project assets. Nevertheless, additional
guarantees may be granted during the construction phase and until the implementation of the project (Note
27). As December 31, 2012 US$ 395,654 thousand corresponds to bridge loan facilities. Bridge loan facilities
are short-term loans that are used during the construction period until the company secures permanent

financing through project financing.

All financing is referenced to market rates and rates are contractually reviewed after periods which do not
generally exceed six months. The fair values of current and non-current financing therefore approximate their

carrying amounts,

At 31 December 2012, non-current borrowings mature as indicated below:

December 31, 2012

Item Between 1 More than 5

and 5 years years _Total
Project Finance 761,178 2,308,857 3,070,035
Other Loans 129,188 314,925 444,114
Finance lease liabilities 100 - 100
Total 890,467 2,623,782 3,514,249

The carrying value and the fair value of the long term financial lease liabilities do not present significant
differences. As a result, liabilities are recorded at payment less formalization cost.
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18. 1) Project Finance

The following debts are included under this caption:

Thousand
s of US§
Subsidiary Project Finance Amount Initial date | Ending date | Interest Rate Amortization
Credit
line
. . 168 monthly
BNDES Suberedit A 42 142 23/12/2009 15/04/2024 TJLP + 2,32% instalments
; fixed rate 114 monthly
BNDES Suberedit B 8,652 231212008 15/10/2019 4,5% annual instalments
JEU'_U Private Bonds Bradesco 77,167 07/02/2012 16/01/2013 CDI + 1,6% 1 instalment
Transmisora 168 monthly
ia 8.A. 9 .
Energia S5.A BNDES Suberedit D 67,546 26/12/2012 15/06/2027 TJLP + 2, 58% instalments
: fixed rate 114 monthly
BNDES Suberedit E 6,447 261212012 15/12/2022 2,5% annual instalmints
144 monthly
BNDES Subcredit F 635 26/12/2012 | 27/02/2022 TJLP retaImEnts
Quarter
instalments while
fixed rate grace period and
Bank of Northeastrn Brazil 107,448 19/05/2010 19/05/2030 8.5% annual monthly
Integragao instalments after
Electrica Norte this.
& Nordeste
S.A,
, o 12 monthly
B.Brasil 14,652 23/07/2012 23/07/2013 CDI + 1,35% inetalmanis
2 34 half- yearly
SUDAM - FDA 294,235 30/1212010 15/10/2030 | TJLP + 1,00% instalments
) fixed rate 204 monthly
Lh;(l?as e BASA - FNO 73,756 | 30122010 | 1000172081 | oo EE Instalments
Transmissora | _Bridge loan, Basa (? 48,840 | 13/00/2012 | 300032013 | CDI+2% 1 instalment
de gf‘:_'g'ﬂ Bridge loan, Basa @ 24,420 | 26/03/2012 | 30/03/2013 | CDI+ 29 1 instalment
Bridge loan, B. Alfa @ 14,652 28M12/2011 | 21/01/2013 | CDI + 2,85% 1 instalment
Bridge loan, B Brasil @ 20,513 14/05/2012 | 13/05/2013 CDI + 2,8% 1 instalment
Linhas de SUDAM - FDA 278,177 | 30/12/2010 | 15M10/2030 | TJLP +1,00% | 34 half-yearly
Macapa instalments
Transmissora _ fixed rate 204 monthly
de Energia BASA - FNO 69,705 30/12/2010 10/01/2031 8,5% annual iata e
SA. Bridge loan, B.Brasil ® 8,303 14/05/2012 13/04/2013 CDI + 2,8% 1 instalment
Linhas de
Taubate Frivate Bonds Bradesco 72,527 27/06/2012 2712/2013 CDI + 2,75% 1 instalment

Transmissora
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de Energia
SA.
Thousand
s of USS
Subsidiary Project Finance Amount Initial date | Ending date | Interest Rate Amortization
Credit
line
Sociedad Euibior+
Concesionaria Senior Credit BNP Paribas > 28 half-yearly
Autovia Ad- ) 85,047 26/06/2008 15/06/2025 (11 ,2155‘;:)- instalrents
Madrid S.A. b
Santander 5.A., Institucién The day after
Banca Multiple, Banco 11.569 13/02/2008 08/02/2026 TIE +1,25% receiving the VAT
Marcantil del Norte 5.A. refund.
Concesionaria T
Santander S.A,, Institucién
Autaplata Banca Multiple, Grupo 366,349 | 08/02/2008 | 08/02/2026 | TIE +2% Incame
Perote-Xalapa ; a0 S differentials
SA deCV. Financiero Santander
Santander S.A., Institucion frsks
Banca Multiple, Grupo 36,635 08/02/2008 08/02/2026 TIE + 2% di §
ifferentials
Financiero Santander
Cancesionaria
Autopista : The day after
Monterrey- Sgntandﬁzjﬁl‘ﬁ" ‘35}1\"‘1}”;'3," 6,941 16/07/2008 @ TIE + 1,25 receiving the VAT
Saltillo, 5.A. anca P8y B refund.
de C.V.
Banco Santander, S. A.
Institucion Banca Multiple, 56 quarter
Grupo Finang]iﬁgo Gl 179,710 29/03/2007 12/03/2026 TIE + 1,65 (natalients
Soma-lsolux
NH One
Tollway Orlental Bank of India 618,340 | 28/02/2000 | 317102022 12% @ ik
Privated
Limited
Soma Isolux [ f;glg&ﬂay
Surat Hazira Oriental Bank of Commerce g 48 quarter
Tollway PVT, (Lender's Agent) 330,878 14/11/2008 30/09/2024 11, l\ﬁgy&1f2ram thetalnante
LTD 201 2(4)
Soma Isolux
Kishangarh- : .
; Oriental Bank of India or ) 48 guarter
Ajm_lf:éi&f;s;war (Lender's Agent) 178,443 14/11/2009 30/09/2024 11% instalmenis
PVT.LTD
Soma lsolux Syndicated Loan, Punjab ‘49 quarter
Varanasi- National Bank (agent) 319,301 | 24/01/2011 | 31/01/2026 10,5% instalments
Aurangabad
Tollway PVT Subordinated loan with
LTD (NH-2) Punjab National Bank \ 4 quarter
(agent) 515417 | 24/01/2011 | 01/01/2027 11,5%" instaiments
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Thousand
s of US%
Subsidiary Project Finance Amount Initial date | Ending date | Interest Rate Amortization
Credit
== line
Bridge loan, DB, L&T, " ;
A Indusind Bank, Subcredit A 8,199 20/01/2012 20/03/2013 12,5% 1 instalment
U.P. Power Bridge loan, DB, L&T, ;
Transmission Indusind Bank. Subcredit B 40,995 20/01/2012 20/06/2013 13,25% 6 instalments
Company Ltd. :
Bridge loan, DB, L&T, ;
Induslnd Bank. Subcredit C 27,330 17/05/2012 20/03/2013 13,25% 1 instalment
BNDES (70%
crédito)_fixed
Banco do Nordeste do Brasil rate 10% 156 monthly
S.A +BNDES 175,062 | 26122011 | 261202027 | pyprciao% [ instamonts
Crédito)
TJLP+5,7%
: : Banco Nacional de
Viabahia Desenvolvimieno 229368 | 211172012 | 1s/09/2024 | TULP42,16% 123 monthly
Concesionaria Econdmico vy Soclal instaiments
de Rodovias y
S A Banco Nacional de 114 thi
b Desenvolvimieno 112479 | 21112012 | 15007/2025 | TJLP+2,16% bbbl d
Econémico y Social e e
Banco Nacional de 98 thi
Desenvolvimieno 169,427 | 2111/2012 | 15/08/2027 | TJLP+2,16% : t"’l"" o
Econémico y Social nelaments
Banco Nacional de
Desenvolvimieno 2,557 | 21112012 | 1511272025 TILP oo sently
Econémico y Social HEAEanS
[ Quarterly
Wett-Wind 30/03/2017 LIBOR +
Energy ™ M or 2,25% or Repayment and
Transmission | 11 BankofNova Scofia™ | 122625 | 2800722011 | 30009017 | AgR+ 1259, | Dullet amoriization
Texas, LLC. ey o' " | of 90% on ending
! date.
Quarterly
Wit Holdings 30032017 1| 1goR +3% | Repayment and
L The Bank of Nova Scotia " | 775,513 | 24/02/2011 30/08/2017 or bullet amortization
® ABR +2%. ™ | of 90% on ending
date,
Subsidiaries of
Tuin BBVA Syndicate, Lean Euribor + 33 half-yearly
ZomeOrgen tranche " ® 853236 | 20/01/2008 | 3111212027 | (Sl oy instalments
Subsidial“ies of
Syndicated loan Euribor + 31 half-yearl
G : : ] yearly
fr:‘lngl?a-ll: gﬂfnr Novacaixagalicia ' © 77,946 17/12/2008 31/12/2026 (1,85%-2%) nstakiemis
Ortosolar
Promotor de Z
Energias Banco Santander 12,452 | 04/06/2009 | 04/06/2028 | Euribor+ (3% | 34 half-yearly
Renovables. - 3,25%) instalments
S.LU

69




W

.

ISOLUX

infrastructure

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE

NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Thousands of US$§)
Euribor +
Global ) = 34 half-yearly
Surya,S.L.U. La Caixa 21,001 18/06/2009 18/06/2028 (g,gg;z) ihetalmentic
Thousand
s of USS
Subsidiary Project Finance Amount Initial date | Ending date | Interest Rate Amortization
Credit
line
T-Solar
m Euribor + (3% 34 half-yearly
Auér.’:EcIoJma Bankia 3,313 18/03/2010 23/04/2028 - 3,75%) iAatalmants
Astonfield
Solar State Bank of India-Export- fixed rate 155 montlhly
RAJASTHAN Import Bank of India 10136 | 24/02/2011 | 241032025 11,5% instalments
Put. Ltd
Astonfield
Solar FC-Export-Import Bank of fixed rate 40 montlhly
GUJARAT India 17684 | 24022081 | /0372073 13,75% instalments
Pvi, Ltd
Subsidiaries of .
Grupo T-Solar | Syndicated Loan Banesto® | 61,005 | 20112/2010 | 201272006 | Euribor* (3% | 31 halt-yearly
Global SA - 3,50%) instalments
Raggio di Euribor + 35 half-yearly
Puglia 2 BIIS 33,708 27/01/2012 30/06/2029 3.0% instalments
Nederlandse Financiaerings-
GTS Majes Maatschappij Voor 3,162 01/01/2012 | 30/04/2026 | Fix rate 8,76% 2:*;‘1 ;gm’:;gy
Ontwikkelingslanden N.V.
Societe de Promotion Et de
GTS Majes Participation Pour a 3162 | 01012012 | 3000412026 | Fixrate 8,76% | 2o arvear
Cooperation Economigue
Fix rate
Overseas Private Tranche 1 33 half-yearly
GTS Majes Investment corporation / US 64,150 01/01/2012 30/04/2030 3,04%; ratalinants
Bank Tranche2
4,64%;
Nederlandse Financierings- ;
Re C;Ilﬁm Maatschappij Voor 3162 | 01/012012 | 3000412026 | Fixrate8,76% | 2 _,’_‘lg‘lmftﬂy
P Ontwikkelingslanden N.V.,
Societe de Promotion Et de
G, Participation Pour la 3162 | 01/01/2012 | 30/04/2026 | Fix rate 8,76% ﬁi;‘;ﬁ:ﬁﬂy
BpALHCIn Cooperation Economique
Fix rate
Overseas Private Trancha 1 "
R GE.S i Investment corporation / US 64,150 01/01/2012 30/04/2030 3,04%; E;Qizlmﬂe;gy
eparticion Bank Tranche2
4,64%:;
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

(1) These loans are subject to certain ratlos com

breached at December 31, 2012,

(2) Due to the fact that the use of long-term financing of SUDAM is no
(3) On July 13, 2012 the company Concesionaria Aule
rafars to the terms of maturity which have been settiad

(4) This Interest rate is subject to fluctuations of PLR (Prime Lending Rate - Bank of India) Interest rate.
(5) Borrowing from related pariias.

(8) The maturity date is the earlier between the third anniversa

Certaln (September 30, 2017).

(7) In each disturbement the company can choose between Eurodallar bormowin

(Alternative Base Rale) borrowing (which are bearing interest at ABR).

ABR: Means the greatest of (a) the Prime Rate in effect on such da

(c) 1% plus the LIBO Rate for a one month Interest Perlod.
(8) The amortization will be In one instalment on the day after recelving the VAT refund.

18.2) Other Loans

pliance. Management understands no covenants under these agreements have been
t available untll 2012, the company has signed a new bridge loan.
pista Perote Xalapa, 5.A. de C.V. had renewed the barrowing, additional changes
on the 10th, 14th and 18th anniversary of the agresment,
ry of the final Substantial Cempletion Date (March 30, 2017) and the Date
g (which are bearing intarest at LIBOR rate) and ABR

y, (b) the Federal Funds Effective Rate for such day plus 1/2 of 1% and

Thousands of

USS Amount Ending
Subsidlary Other Loans Credit line | Initial date date Interest Rate Amortization
Isolux Energia
e Parlicipagoes DI/ CETIP + Six half-yearly
S.A, Votorantim 68,376 | 15/12/2011 | 19/06/2019 5,35% instalments
Cachoeira Bonds holders
Paulista de (private investors) 48 Quarterly
Energia S.A. " 107,448 | 11/11/2011 | 11/11/2023 7,8% @ instalments
Isolux Corsan
NH1 Cyprus 10 half-yearly
Limited Cofides, 5.A, " 32,985 | 16/12/2009 | 01/06/2017 | Euribor + 3,55% instalments
31 January
annually with
FONADIN Credit A income
Concesionaria kil 39,797 | 2010/2010 | 2039 8,50% @ differentials
Autopista 31 January
Monterrey- annually with
Saltillo, 5.A. de | FONADIN Credit B income
C.V. LY 40,423 | 20/10/2010 | 2054 8,50% @ differentials
Viabahia
Concesionaria
de Rodovias,
SA. Banco Safra S.A. 10,443 | 13/06/2011 | 03/06/2013 | fixed rate 2,4% 1 instalment
Isolux Corsén
participacioes
na Viabahla 10 equal
Ltda. Cofides, 5.A. 28,504 | 31/05/2011 | 31/05/2018 | Euribor +4,25% instalments
Concesionaria 31 January
Autopista annually with
Perote-Xalapa, 80% of income
| SA. deC.V. FONADIN 220,363 | 13/07/2011 | 13/07/2057 8.50% ® differentials
Between
T-Solar Global, 01/01/2015
Operating and
Assets 5L @ Banesto 5,487 | 26/03/2010 | 01/01/2035 | fixed rate 5% 1 instalment

(1) These loans are subject to certain rallos com

breached at December 31, 2012,

pliance, Management understands no covenants under these agreaments have been
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

(2) This Interest rate is subject to Inflation rate.

(3) This loan is denominated In UDIs.

(4) On September 19, 2012, Grupo T-solar Global, §.A. contributed this loan to T-Solar Global, Operating Assetes S.L.
(5) This loan has been partially cancelled during 2013, (Note 33)

On November 11, 2011 the company Cachoeira Paulista Transmissora de Energia S.A. has issued 220.000
bonds with par value of 1.000 US$ each, which amounts to $ 220.000. The bonds will be amortized quarterly
and bears an annual interest rate of 7,8% subject to inflation rate. At the same time the company has repaid
and cancelled the loan it had with BNDES as at September 30, 2011 which amounted to $ 114.004.

In December 11, 2011 Isolux Energia e Participacoes,S.A. has issued 140.000 bonds with par value of 1.000
US§ each, which amounts to $ 140.000. The bonds will be amortized semiannually and bears an annual
interest CDI+5,35%. The funds raised in this issue have been allocated to the repayment of the bonds
previously issued during November 2010, for an initial amount of US$ 100.000 thousand.

At December 31, 2012 the Group's debt structure is as follows:

December

__ 31,2012
Borrowing aceruing a variable interest rate 3,535,352

Borrowing accruing a fixed interest rate 483,873
4.019,225

18.3) Borrowings’ breakdown
December 31,

Project Finance 2012
Concesionaria Autopistas Monterrey-Saltillo, S.A. de C.V, 179,314
Conceslonaria Autopista Perote-Xalapa S.A. de C.V. 186,971
Integracao Electrica Norte e Nordeste S.A. 58,619
Jauru Transmissora Energia S.A, 41,102
Linhas de Macapa Transmissora de energia 5.A. 381,282
Sociedad Concesionaria Autorvia A4-Madrid 5.A. 83,799
Soma Isolux Kishangarh-Ajmer-Beawar Tollway PVT, LTD 83,643
Soma Isolux NH One Tollway PVT, LTD 397,479
Soma Isolux Surat hazira Tollway PVT, LTD 103,294
Saoma Isolux Varanasi Aurangabad Tollway PVT, LTD 37696
Viabahla Concesionaria de Rodovias S.A. 178,614
Wett Holdings LLC. 22475
Wett-Wind Energy Transmission Texas, LLC. 128,260
Linhas de Xingu Transmissora de energia S.A. 421,158
South East U.P. Power Transmission Company Lid, 76,524
Linhas de Taubaté Transmissora de Energia S.A. 74,414
Astonfield Solar Pvt. Ltd 276
Subsidiaries of Grupo-T Solar Global, S.A. 52,686
Subsidiaries of Tuin Zonne Origen, S.L. 737,422
Global Surya, S.L.U. 17,413
Ortosolar Promotor de Energias Renovables S.L.U, 10,733
T-Solar Auténoma S.L.U 2,893
T-Solar Global Operating Assets, S.L. 67,779
Raggio di Puglia 2 8.r.| 31,674
Astonfield Solar Rajasthan Prived Limited 9,764
Astonfield Solar Gujarat Private Limited 14,645
GTS Majes S.A.C and GTS Reparticion S.A.C 142,128
Total Project Finance 3,643,057
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NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED

BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Thousands of US$)

Other loans

Isolux Corsan NH1 Cyprus Limited

Isolux Energia e Parlicipagoes Lida.

Isolux Corsan Paricipaciones na Viabahla Ltda
Cachoeira Paulista Trnasmissora Energia S.A.
Concesionaria Autopistas Monterrey-Saltillo, S.A. de C.V.
Concesionaria Autopista Perote-Xalapa S.A. de C.V.
Viabahia Concesionaria de Rodovias S.A.

T-Solar Global, Operating Assetes, S.L.

29,875
77,003
26,687

104,432
98,169

119,802
14,452

5,487

Total Other Loans

Finance lease liabilities

475,907
261

TOTAL

4,019,225

18.4) Other information

The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings is denominated in the following currencies:

Non-current

US Dollar
Euros

Mexican Peso
Brazilian reais
Indian Rupee

Current
US Dollar
Euros

Mexican Peso
Brazilian reais
Indian Rupee

December 31,
2012

1,143,254
251,757
576,953

1,034,854
507,431

3,514,249

71,930
4,888
7,306

334,178

86,674

504,976

4,019,225
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

19. Deferred income tax

The gross movement in deferred income tax is shown below:

Deferred tax Deferred tax
assets liabilities
2012 2012
Opening balance - -
Additions to Consolidation scope 198,281 86,635
Charge to Income Tax (Note 26) 7,406 2,976
Tax Charged to Equity 5,807 -
Translation Differences Effect 516 428
31 December 2012 212,010 90,037

At October 29, 2012 the Group incorporated US$ 198,281 thousand as deferred tax assets and US$ 86,535
thousand as deferred tax liabilities as a result of the addition to consclidated scope described in note 1.

Deferred tax assets breakdown at December 31, 2012 is as follow:

December 31,

2012

Tax lossas carried forward 21,946
Tax credits pending application 42,255
Temporary differences 147,809
212,010

Deferred tax assets with respect to tax credits pending application and tax losses are recognized insofar as
the realization of the relevant tax benefit through future taxable profits is likely. The Group has recognized all
its tax credits and tax losses on the basis of estimated future taxable profits.

The Group has recognized tax credits with respect fo tax losses mainly from Spain, to be applied over a 10-15
year period although the Group only recognizes the ones that expect to apply them before 10 years.
Application is estimated to be started over the 12 month period.

Tax credits pending application refer entirely to environmental deductions in accordance with the provisions of
Article 39.3 of Decree 4/2005 (March 5) which approves the Spanish Corporate Income Tax Act. Certain
subsidiaries of the photovoltaic business have recognized a deduction in the amount established by that law
for that year for the investments made in new property, plant and equipment intended to take advantage of
renewable energy sources, consisting of the solar energy plants and equipment that produce heat or
electricity.

The deadline for these deductions was initially 10 years, which was extended 15 years derived from the
changes introduced by Decree Law 20/2012. In the case of newly created entities, the application of this
deduction may be deferred until the first period in which, within the limitation period (four years), generated
positive financial results.

These deductions are subject to the condition of the investments for a minimum period of 5 years from the
date of registration of the asset that generated them.
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Deferred tax liabilities breakdown at December 31, 2012 is as follow:

December 31, 2012

Temporary differences

90,037

90,037

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary differences are analyzed below:

Temporary differences December 31, 2012

Deferred tax assets

Arising from nen-current assets
Arising from financial derivativas measurement

69,120
78,689

Total

147,809

Deferred tax liabilities

Arising from non-current asseis
Arising from financial derivatives measurement
Arising from other items

34,866

55171

Total

90,037

20. Provisions for other liabilities and charges

December 31, 2012

Non-current Current
Balance at 13 June 2012 - =
Additions to Consolidation Scope 14,448 168,444
Additions - -
Applications - (88,088)
Conversian Difference 58 -
Balance at 31 December 2012 14,506 B0,356

This caption mainly refers the costs overruns arisen in relation to Linhas de X

explained in note 12.

Additionally, based on a study carried out during the year by a third party, the
for the cost of dismantling the photovaltaic plants and the amount has been es

ingl y Linhas de Macapa as

Group has recorded a provision
timated at US$ 5,018 thousand.

The recognition of this amount derives from the contractual obligation to dismantle the installations once the
lease for the land on which they are located expires and in no case is this period less than 25 years as from

the time of launch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

21. Revenue / Sales

Sales information by activity and market is included in Note 6.

Generally, infrastructure’s construction is subcontracted to other companies (mainly related parties).
Consequently, the recognized construction margin is minimum (not greater than 1%), except when works are

performed directly by concession companies or when an analysis of risks assumed by the concession entities
during construction supports a higher margin.

22, Materials consumed and other external costs

The account materials consumed and other external costs are analyzed below:

December 31, 2012

Materials consumed (73,776)
Outsourced construction Works (16,108)
Other external expenses (5,325)
Change in inventories (2,350)

(97,557)

23. Other operating income and expense

Other operating income

December 31, 2012

Other operating income 1,522
Total 1,622
Other operating expenses

Operating leases (4,287)
Taxes {4,109)
Other operating expenses (13)
Total (8,409)

24, Employee Benefit Expense

December 31, 2012

Wages and salaries 14,631
Social Security on othar employee benefit 7,381
22,012

During the year 2012, the average number of employees, based on full-time equivalents, was 4,677. Of these
employees, 4,677 were employed outside the Netherlands.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

25.Finance Income and Costs

December 31, 2012

Interest expense (65,139)
Net losses on derivative financial instruments at fair value (6,056)
Other financial expense (1,424)
Financial expense (72,619)
Interest income and other financial income 2739
Net gains on derivative financial instruments at fair value 0
Other financial income 3,448
Financial Income 6,187
Net gains/ (losses) on foreign currency transactions 7,279
Net financial results L (59,153)

26, Income Tax

Income tax expense is composed of:

December 31,

2012

Current income tax 5,131
Deferred tax (Note 19) 4,430
Total Income Tax (Expense)/income 9,561

The Group's income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would have been obtained if the tax rate
applicable to the combined companies’ profits had been used as follows:

December 31,

2012

Profit (losses) before taxes (42,557)
Tax calculated at the rate applicable to each company 11,979
Costs not deductible (2,172)
Differences in Deferred Tax recognizing due to tax losses (4,047)
Other 3,801
Tax (Expense)/income 9,561

The effective tax rate in The Netherlands is 25%, differs from the average rates applicable to the Group's
companies mainly due to the net effect of non-deductible expenses, which increase the effective tax rate,
22.46%, as well as the non-capitalization of tax losses in certain companies.

Likewise, Isolux Cors&n Concesiones was subject to a general inspection of Value Added Tax (2006-2008),
Income Tax (2006-2008), Annual Statement of Operations (2005-2008) and Intra-Community Business
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US§)

Operations Statement (2005-2008), due to the fact that until 2011 it was registered under the Consolidated
Fiscal Group of Isolux, which parent company is Grupo Isolux Corsan, S.A. and it will be the last responsible
company of any contingency that would arise.

Likewise, the Isolux Corsan Consolidated Fiscal Group, to which belonged Isolux Corsan Concesiones S.A.U.
until 2011, is subject to a general inspection of Value Added Tax (2006-2008), Income Tax (2006-2008),
Annual Statement of Operations (2005-2008) and Intra-Community Business Operations Statement (2005-
2008), which parent company is Grupo Isclux Corsan, S.A. and it will be the last responsible company of any
contingency that would arise. As a result of these inspections, tax reports were issued by the income tax for
the periods surveyed. Some of those tax reports were signed under discussion by the group, mainly by the
concepts of deductions for export. The total amount is approximately US$ 5,916 thousand. In the opinion of
management of the Company and its tax advisors, it is not considered that the final outcome of appeals have
a significant impact on the financial statements at year end 2012, so that the Group has not recorded any
provision with it. Under the Directors of the parent company and its tax consultants opinion, they have strong
arguments in order to support the Group position, and estimate that any additional liability that might be raised
would not significantly affect the Group Financial situation.

On August 31, 2012 was filed economic-administrative claim before the Court Central Tax for the
aforementioned tax repots.

On November 30, 2012, the Tax Administration Service ("SAT") notified the subsidiary Concesionaria
Autopista Monterrey Saltillo,5.A. de C.V. that there iz a tax contingency which amounts to US$ 80,646
thousand (1.046 millions mexican pesos) corresponding to income tax (ISR), value added tax (VAT) and
corporate flat rate tax rates plus several legal gear attachments relating FY 2008. The company's Directors
and its tax consultants consider that the issuing authority of the official note has breached its obligations to
state and encourage the official note according to the law, the tax contingency is not applicable and therefore,
this situation is in appeal for revocation which was submitted on February 18, 2013. Evidence will be shown by
the company when required, to prove the illegality of the official note, using all legal means in good faith.
Nevertheless, the company's Director and its tax consultants consider remote that the resolution of the legal
procedure would have significant impact over the operating result and its financial position.

As a result, among other things, of the different interpretations to which local tax legislation lends itself,
additional liabilities may be raised in the event of a tax inspection. The directors of the company consider,
however, that any additional liability that might be raised would not significanily affect these financial
statements.

27. Contingencies and guarantees provided

The Group, in the ordinary course of business, has furnished technical guarantees in connection with the
execution of projects and for the proper performance of contracts amounting to $ 119,873 thousand.

In connection with the sale of investment in the Brazilian concessions during 2010, Isolux Energia e
Participagoes guaranteed certain litigations and disputes. The Directors do not expect significant liabilities
arising other than provisioned ones (Note 18).

Based on the opinion of the legal counsels, the Directors estimate that there are no significant contingencies
qualified as possible risk.

As well, Grupo T-Solar Global provided a guarantee in order to ensure the compliance of the of Grupo Isolux
Corsan, §.A. in relation with the agreement signed in 2011 with Corpfin and other capital funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMEER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

In addition, the Group has furnished financial guarantees to third parties to meet all the financial agreement
undertakings related to the different projects. Guarantees in force at 31 December 2012 are detailed as
follows:
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE NETHERLANDS
B.A. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED BETWEEN JUNE
13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of dollars)

28. Commitments

The main committed investments for the Group are those relating to the described in note 7 “Property, plant
and equipment”, note 9 “Intangible assets” and note 12 “Trade and other receivables”,

On April 24, 2012 Isolux Corsan NH1 Cyprus, Limited signed a share purchase and sale agreement with
Corsén Corviam Construccion, S.A. related to 10% of shares of Soma Isolux NH One tollway Private Ltd. The
transaction will be performed at the fair value determined by an independent expert and could only occur once
all necessary authorizations had been obtain.

On October 19, 2012, 1solux Corsan Power concessions India Private Limited signed a share purchase and
sale agreement with Isolux Corsan India engineering & Construction Private Limited, about 2,628,381
compulsorily convertible preference shares of Mainpuri Power Transmission Private Limited. According to the
first amendment of the agreement signed on March 22, 2013 the purchase price, fixed in US$ 17,837

thousand (980 million Indian rupees), shall be payable by the Purchaser to the Seller at any time not later than
September 30, 2013.

The Group has receivable assets from related parties recognized in relation with these two commitments (note
30).

29. Insurance

The Group's policy is to maintain an adequate insurance coverage according to each kind of risk and based
on maximum exposure to such risks being covered; among others: fires, floods, machinery breakage,
accidents and environmental damages.

In respect to assets under construction such as some photovoltaic plants, electric transmission lines and
highways, the company in charge of their construction (usually outsourced entities) is responsible for those
damages that may arise during this period. Once construciion is finished, there are legal warranty periods
considered under country's legislation.

For concessions assets under operation, insurance policies required to meet the obligations established by
the granting authority due to administrative concession terms are purchased / arranged. In addition, these

assets are protected by the coverage granted by the authority due to their public service nature and the
specific terms they are assigned to.

In case of major disasters, the granting authority is usually responsible for assets' damages and grants to the
concessionaire additional funds to respond to extraordinary repairs.

In general, for operating solar plants the companies outsource maintenance services covering breakages and
replacements.

30. Related-parties

Balances with related parties as of 31 December 2012, arise from the ordinary course of business. These
balances are described below:

a) Remuneration paid to Board directors and key management of the Group

Remuneration paid to Board Directors and management related to executive functions as of December 31,
2012 amounts to US$ 347 thousand.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED

BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Thousands of US$)

At December 31, 2012 there are not loans to senior management that have been directly paid by the

Company.

b) Transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties at 31 December 2012 are analyzed below:

Services rendered

Isolux Corsan Servicios, S.A,

Grupo Isolux Corsan, 5.A.
Constructora Autopista Perote Xalapa
Grupo Isolux Corsén Concesiones, S.L.
Total

Financial income

Grupo Isolux Corsan, S.A.
Isolux Ingenierla, 5.A.
Total

Receipt of services

Grupo Isolux Corsan, S.A.

Isolux Corsan Serviclos, S.A.
Elzamex, S.A.

Isolux Ingenierfa USA, LLC

Corsan Corviam Construccion, S.A.

Constructora Autopista Perote-Xalapa, S.A. de C.V.

Isolux Projetos e Instalagoes Ltda
Indra Isolux de México S.A. de C.V.
Isolux Ingenierla, 5.A,

Isolux Corsan India Engineering & Construction Pvt.

ICI C&C Mainpuri JV
Other

Total

December 31,
2012

90
515
270
340

1.215

389
44

433

December 31,
2012

62
1,245
758
131,602
1,645
10,578
14.195
96

27
8.918
84.214
133

253.473
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE

NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED

BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

c) Balances with related parties

Balances with related parties at 31 December 2012 are analyzed below:;

December 31, 2012

Receivables from related parties
Aparcamientos Segovia S.L.

Isolux Projetos e Instalaciones Ltda
Isolux Ingenierfa USA, LLC

Luxeol §.L.

Total receivable from related parties (note 12)

Loans to group and related parties

Grupo |solux Corsén Concesiones, S.L.

Infra-PSP Canada, Inc

Grupo |solux Corsan, S.A.

Isolux Projetos e Instalagdes Lida

Total loans to group and related parties (note 12)

Advanced payments to related parties for construction services
Isolux Projetos e Instalaciones Lida

ICI - C&C Mainpuri, JV

Isolux Corsan India Engineering & Construction and Sema Entrerprises
Limited

Isolux Ingenieria 5.A.

Iselux Corsan India Engineering & Construction and C&C

Total Advanced payments to related parties for construction
services (note 12)

Total (Note 12)

Total Non-Current Current
4 - 4
198 - 198
5 - 5
5 - 5
212 - 212
90,342 10,461 79,881
313,654 52,308 261,346
14,390 - 14,390
61 - 61
418,447 62,769 355,678
35,165 - 35,165
79,885 - 79.885
17.971 17,871 ¥
11,470 - 11,470
21,365 21,365 -
166,856 39,336 126,520
584,515 122,312 482,410

Amounts related to loans to group and related parties include outstanding payments regarding to partly paid

shares issued by the parent company (note 12 and 14).
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

December 31, 2012

Non-
Total Current Current

Borrowings from not financial related parties:
- Borrowings from Grupo Isolux Corséan related parties
Isolux Corsén Do Brasil S.A. 23 - 23
Grupo Isclux Corsan, S.A. 176 - 176
Isolux Corsdn Indla Engineering & Construction Private Ltd 18,221 - 18,221
Isolux de México S.A, da C.V, 217 - 217
Isolux Projetos e Instalagtes Lida 49,433 47,131 2,302
Grupe Iselux Corsan Concesiones, S.L. 17,107 - 17,107
Infra-PSP Canada Inc, 321,088 321,088 -

Total borrowings from Shareholders related parties 406,265 368,219 38,046
- Borrowings from other not financial related parties
Elsamex, 5.A, 10,636 10,636 -
Grusamar Ingenieria y Consulting, S.L. 575 575 -

Total borrowings from other nor financial related parties 11,211 11,211 -
Total Borrowings from not financial related parties (Note 17) 417,476 379,430 38,046
Trade credits from related parties:
Grupo Isolux Corsan, S.A. 44 - 44
Corsdan Corviam Construccion, S.A. 460 - 460
Isolux Corsan India Engineering & Construction Private Ltd 6,315 - 6,315
Isolux Corsan Serviciog, S.A. 1,615 - 1,615
Isolux Ingenierla, 8.A. 264 - 264
Isolux Ingenieria USA, LLC. 21,240 - 21,240
Isolux Projetos e Instalagées Ltda 2 - 2
Constructora Autopista Perote - Xalapa, S.A. de C.V. 3,488 - 3,488
ICI - C&C Mainpurl, JV 73,038 - 73,038
Indra Isolux de México S.A. de C.V. 19 - 19
Total trade credits from related parties (Note 17) 106,485 - 106,485
Borrowings from financial related parties
ARRL (Mauritius) Limited 166 166 .
Total Borrowings from financial related parties (Nota 16) 166 166 -
Total 524,127 379,596 144,531

Amounts related to Borrowings from related parties of Grupo Isolux Corsan includes the obligation of the
purchase price that shall be payable for the preference shares of Mainpuri Power Transmission Private
Limited by Isolux Corsan Power concessions India Private Limited to Isolux Corsan India Engineering &
Construction, Ltd (see Note 28).

Amounts related to Borrowings from related parties of Elsamex, S.A. and Grusamar Ingenieria Consulting,
S.L. correspond to subordinated borrowing granted to Sociedad Concesionaria Autovia A-4 Madrid, S.A.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

which maturity date is at 2025 (see Note 18). This borrowing was granted in 2008 and accrues a fixed interest
rate of 4% and variable interest rate of 3% of operating revenue.

Balances from Isolux Corsan India Engineering & Construction, Isolux Ingenieria USA, LLC, Constructora
Autopista Perote - Xalapa and ICI - C&C Mainpuri, JV., relates to work carried out concerning assets under
constructions.

31. Joint ventures

The Group has interests in the joint ventures listed in Appendix Il. The amounts set out below represented the
Group' share, based on its interest in the joint ventures, on assets, liabilities of joint ventures consolidated
through the proportional method (Note 3.1.). These amounts are included in the Consolidated Balance sheet;

December 31,

2012
Assats:
Non-currant assets 977,556
Current assets 75,699
1,063,255
Liabilities:
Non-current liabilities 972,918
Current liabilities 84,480
1,057,408
Net assets (4,153)
Revenue 160,011
Expenses (163,908)
Profit / (loss) after taxes (3,898)

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interests in joint ventures, or contingent liabilities
recognized by the joint ventures themselves,

32. Subsequent events

On February 28, 2013 the company Concesionaria Autopista Monterrey-Saltillo S.A. de C.V. has issued
42.000.000 bonds with par value of 100 Mexican pesos each, which amounts to 4.200.000 thousands
Mexican pesos (US$ 323,929 thousand). The bonds, which are designated in UDIS, will be amortized on 29"
December 2037, and bears an annual interest rate of 5,9%. At the same time the company has repaid and
cancelled entirely the senior project finance it had with Santander S.A. and has amortised partially the
convertible subordinated loan it held with Fondo Nacional de Infraestructura (Fonadin).

As well, the company has cancelled the interest rate swap designated to hedge the mentioned loan with
Santander S.A., which related hedge reserves approximately amounted to US$ 25,686 thousand (333,043
thousand Mexican pesos), and has a result in a loss of US§ 38,927 thousand (504,715thousand Mexican
pesos).
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)

On March 27, 2013, Infra-PSP Canada Inc., shareholder of the Company, has reached a sale and transfer of
shares agreement with PSPEUR, S.ar.l., selling to the latter company 78,462,500 ordinary shares of Isolux
Infrastructure Netherlands, B.V. with a nominal value of one United States Dollar cent (USD 0.01), each
numbered from v313,871,871 through v392,334,470, which purchase price amounts to US$ 313,850
thousand.

33. Audit Fees

Auditor fees
December 31, 2012
Other Total Audit
PwC Firm auditors fees
Audit of the financial statements 1,491 226 1,717
Other audit procedures 615 615
Other non-audlt services 448 448
2.554 226 2,780

The fees listed above relate to the procedures applied to the company and its consolidated group entities by
accounting firms and external auditors as referred to article 1(1) of the Dutch Accounting Firms Oversight Act.

These amounts relate to annual audit fees, including the 12 month period ended on December 31, 2012.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE
NETHERLANDS B.V. AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD COMPRISED
BETWEEN JUNE 13 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Thousands of US$)
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* * *

PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT DECEMBER 31,
2012

The Bpard of ‘Directom of Isolux Infrastructure Netherlands, B.V. at its meeting at April 11, 2013, have
authorized for issue the consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2012, as sel out in the documents
which are attached to and precede this document.

Signatories:

WiiE

Mr. Luis Delso Heras
Chairma

Mr. José Gomis Caiiete
Member

W1 (ot~

M. Aatoniu de Padua Portela Alvarez
=

\,\‘LU/\J

'

Mr. Rebert Hendrik Roftinghuis
Member
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—a "'-.\_\_\_‘
% -
H""-\-\._
.
—

Mr. Jar] eﬁdnk Siemssen

Membe
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Mr. Arie Cornelis lgmar den Hejier
Member

Mr.Brund Guilmette My.Patrick Samson
Member Member
%. Lé
Mr. Steven Sonnenstein Mr.?nr@go Varela
Member CE
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T

Mr. Javier Prados % — —

Non-voting secretary






OTHER INFORMATION

I Provisions in the Articles of Association relating to profit appropriation

Article 24 of the Articles of Association states that from the profits realised in any financial year, firstly the
Management Board will state the amount of profits accrued in a financial year that shall be added to the
reserves of the Company and secondly the General Meeting will determine the allocation of profits accrued in
a financial year remaining after application to reserves.

1L Parent company's proposed profit appropriation

The Board of Directors proposes to appropriate the loss of US$ 24,359 thousand as follows:

us$

thousand

Addition to legal reserves -
Accumulated losses 24 359
Loss of the year 24,359

[|[ Events after balance sheet date

There have been no other significant events after balance sheet date which may be significant and which is
not disclosed in note 32.






ISOLUX INFRASTRUCTURE NETHERLANDS, B.V. CONSOLIDATED DIRECTOR'S REPORT 2012

1. General Information

The parent Company's corporate purpose is the participation in other companies as a partner or shareholder in the country
or abroad (holding).

The Group operates mainly through the following lines of business:

= Concessions: the Group holds concessions for land infrastructures such as motorways and the electrical
infrastructures such as high-voltage transmission lines and energy transformation stations.

« Photovoltaic energy: generation or production of renewable energies through photovoltaic plants technelogy.

Additionally the Group has its main activities and sales in India, Brazil, Mexico, Spain and is expanding to other countries
such as United States of America, Italy and Peru.

The parent company is jointly controlled by Grupo Isolux Corsan Concesiones, S.L. (a subsidiary of Grupo Isolux Corsan,
S.A. devoted to engiennering and construction and present in more than 25 countries and 4 continents) and Infra-PSP
Canada Inc., which holds 80,77% and 19,23% of the shares respectively (directly or indirectly).

The company was controlled by Grupo Isolux Corsan, S.A. before the agreement with Public Sector Pension Investment
Board (PSP), a Canadian pension fund, which committed to contribute to Isolux Infrastructure Netherlands the amount of
US$ 627,700 thousand, of which the 50% is contributed through a convertible loan and remaining 50% through an equity
contribution (acquisition of shares issued by Isolux Infrastructure Netherlands, B.V.).

In the agreement, it is also stipulated the commitment by Grupo Isolux Corsan Concesiones, S.L. to contribute to the Group
the amount of US$ 125,540 thousand (50% through a convertible loan and 50% trough equity).

Prior to the subscription of shares by PSP, on October 29 2012, Grupo Isolux Corsan contributed to the parent Company,
its participation in the Spanish companies Isolux Corsan Concesiones, S.A.U. (“ICC"), Isolux Corsdn Concesiones de
Infraestructuras, S.L.U. ("ICCI") and Grupe T-Solar Global, S.A. (GTSG) in exchange of share capital increase. With these
transactions, the parent Company received the businesses of concessions and photovoltaic energy.

Organisational structure

Power Transmission business includes 8 projects in 3 different countries and counts with more than 10 years experience in
managing transmission assets in Brazil. It is also the first non North American Group to become a transmission Utility in the
USA and is already certified Utility in Ontario (Canada), and the first foreign developer to break into the Indian HV
Transmission Sector.

Toll Roads business includes 8 projects in 4 countries, most of them under operation. It is the largest international
developer in India and is currently developing a number of proposals in the USA.,

T-Solar (Photovoltaic Energy) develops, manages and sells energy in 4 different countries and is currently prospecting new
markets in Africa and Asia



A breakdown of the different projects by business and countries is as follows:
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Sandsrla £0.00%

Madrd - Ocafia 44 48,75%

As well, during the year 2012, the average number of employees, based on full-time equivalents, was 4.677. Of these
employees, 4,677 were employed outside the Netherlands.

Due to new legal requirements as of 2013, disclosure in the Directors’ Report is required when the composition of the Board
of Directors is not equally divided between men and women. At this moment the composition of the Board of Directors does
not reflect the situation as described in articles 166 and 167 Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. The parent company takes the
issue of Boardroom diversity very seriously and believes that maintaining a balance of experience, skills, knowledge and
background is key to its effective performance. It believes gender diversity is an important element of this mix. A balanced
situation as outlined in the above mentioned articles would only be realized if and when vacancies may become available
and only to the extent that compliant candidates are of equal quality.



2. Financial Highlights

2.1. Financial Highlights

The development of the Group's main figures in 2012, considering basically 2 months of main businesses activity since the
businesses were transferred to the parent company and the parent company transactions since its incorporation, is as
follows (in US$ thousands):

2012
Total operating revenue 155,392
Operating profit 16,596
Gross operating profit - EBITDA (1) 42,022
Net financial results (59,153)
Project Finance (2) 3,543,057
Net debt with financial entities (3) 3,655,614

(1) Operating profit without amortization/ depreciation, impairment losses and changes in trade provisions.
(2) Includes short and long-term Project Finance.

(3) Includes debts with financial entities net of cash, cash equivalents and financial investments guarantying financial debt.

2.2  Group's results

2.21 Income Statement Performance by activities

The performance of the income statement for 2012, considering basically 2 months of main businesses activity since the
businesses were transferred to the parent company and the parent company transactions since its incorporation, is as

follows (in US$ thousands):

Electric
December 31, 2012 TranE[mISsion Highways Solar Energy | General Total
nes

Operating Income 63,796 85,180 7,369 (953) 155,392
Revenue/ Sales 63,146 83,669 7.040 15 153,870
Other operating income 650 1.511 328 (968) 1,522
Operating expenditure (46,774) (66,541) (20,752) (4,729) (138,796)
Materials consumed and other external costs (37.254) (54,390) (3,649) (2,264) (97,557)
Employee benefit expense (3,264) (1,242) (541) (2,357) (7,404)
Other operating expenses (6,020) (1.676) (612) (101) (8,409)
Amortization (236) (9,233) (15,950 (7) (25,426)
Operating results 17,022 18,639 (13,383) (5,682) 16,596
Financial expenses (20,018) (22,844) (9,812) (19,945) (72,619)
Financial income 1,874 3,957 704 (348) 6,187
Net gains / (losses) on foreign currency

transactions 396 (270) (249) 7,402 7,279
Net financial results (17,748) (19,157) (9,357) (12,891) (59,153)
Profit (loss) before income tax (726) (518) (22,740) (18,573) (42,557)
Income tax (883) 2 666 7,779 (1) 9,561
Profit for the period (1,608) 2,148 (14,962) | (18,673) (32,996)

Electric
Revenue/ Sales December 31, 2012 Tmnfir:;:smn Highways Solar Energy | General Total

- Construction services revenue (IFRIC 12) 41,534 41,937 - - 83,471
- Financial income related to concession’s

financial asset (IFRIC 12) 20,640 - - - 20,640
- Operation and maintenance revenues 871 41,733 7,040 15 49,759
- Direct taxes on sales - - * 4 -
Total 63,145 83,670 7,040 15 153,870




¢  Electric Transmission lines: concession for the electrical infrastructures such as high-voltage transmission lines
and energy transformation stations mainly operates in Brazil, India and USA.

= Highways: concession for land infrastructures such a as motorways, operates in India, Mexico, Spain and Brazil.

= Solar energy: generation or production of renewable energies through photovaoltaic plants technology and related
to the generation of electricity, mainly operates in Spain,

* General: general business unit includes the holding information and information from other non operative
subholdings. This information is included in the geographical areas analysis according to the area in which each
subholding operates.

2.2, Income Statement Performance by geography
Dacember 31, 2012 Netherlands Spain Brazl| Mexico India usa Other Total
Operating Income - 5,406 99,074 8,038 37,432 150,025 | (144,583) 155,392
Revenue/ Sales - 5,966 98,737 6,641 37,405 5,121 153,870
Other operating income - (560) 337 1,397 27 150,025 | (149,704) 1,522
Operating expenditure (1.432) | (22,393) (73,501) (4,040) | (33,194)| (150,429) 146,193 | (138,796)
Materials consumed and
other external expenses (1,432) (3,882) (61,103) (3,.031) | (26,784) | (150,036) 148,711 (97,557)
Employee benefit expense - (3,278) (2,906) (112) (734) (374) - (7,404)
Other operating expenses - (585) (7,509) (95) (69) (8) (143) (8,409)
Amoriization -] (14,648) (1,983) (802) |  (5.607) (11) (2,375) (25,426)
Operating results (1,432) | (16,987) 25,573 3,088 4,238 (404) 1,610 16,596
Financial expenses (19,074) | (12,365) (26,870) (8,710) (5,500) z - (72,619)
Financial income (348) 797 2,165 98 3,479 (4) - 6,187
Net gains / (losses) on
foreign currency transactions 3,106 4,047 (191) (86) 403 - - 7,279
Net financial resulis (16,316) (7,521) (24,996) (8,698) (1,618) (4) - (59,153)
Profit (loss) before income
tax (17,748) |  (24,508) 577 (4,700) 2,620 (408) 1,610 (42,557) |
Income tax - 10,329 2,906 (579) (865) - (2,230) 9,561
Profit (loss) for the year (17,748) (14,179) 3,483 (5,279) 1,755 (408) (620) (32,996)
Revenua!ﬁalze:; 5 ecember Netherlands Spain Brazil Mexico India UsA Other Total
Construction services
revenue (IFRIC 12) - - 61,775 - 21,695 - - 83,470
Financial income related to
concession’s financlal asset
(IFRIC 12) - - 18,082 - 2,558 - - 20,640
Operation and maintenance
revenues - 5 966 18,880 6,641 13,152 5121 49,760
Direct taxes on sales - - - a 5 - p H
Total Revenue /Sales - 5,966 98,737 6,641 37,405 - 5121 153,870




3 Group's financial position

3.1 Financial position by activities
Electric
December 31, 2012 Transmission Highways Solar Energy General Total
Lines
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 249,842 3,632 1,488,667 55 1,742,196
Intangible assets — Goodwill B - 55 520 - 55,520
Intangible assets — Other 1,840 2,167,947 - 66 2,169,853
Financial investments 596 10,184 50,480 Z 71,270
Trade and other receivables 1,665,163 69,522 13,334 62,776 1,810,795
Deferred income lax assets 56,905 27,027 127,980 98 212,010
Derivative financial instruments
1,974,346 2,278,312 1,745,991 62,995 6,061,644
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 753 4 6,199 1 6,957
Trade and other receivables 361,412 28,197 40,363 358,307 788,279
Derivative financial instruments - 2,242 - - 2,242
Financial investments - 35,986 - - 35,986
Cash and cash eguivalents 134,823 74,186 108,945 40,301 356,355
497,088 140,615 153,507 398,609 1,189,819
[ Total assets 2,414,529 2,391,900 1,771,618 461,506 7,261,463
LIABILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 974,889 1,497,166 1,042,194 5 3,514,249
Derivative financial instrumants B,B18 72,410 150,933 - 232,161
Deferred income tax liabilities 36,105 6,761 47,171 - 90,037
Provisions for other liabilities
and charges 3,801 5,364 5,018 323 14,506
Trade and other payables 189,793 182,375 60,862 317,562 750,592
1,213,406 1,764,076 1,306,178 317,885 4,601,545
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 306,928 321,759 32,524 38,533 699,744
Current income tax liabilities - = - - .
Bomowings 411,433 42,950 50,593 - 504,976
Derivative financial instruments - - 30,130 - 30,130
Provisions for other liabilities
and charges 80,336 20 = - 80,356
798,697 364,729 113,247 38,533 1,315,206
Total Liahilities 2,012,103 2,128,805 1,419,425 356,418 5,916,751
| Total Equity 402,426 263,095 352,093 105,088 1,334,712




3.2 Financial position by geography

December 31, 2012 Netherlands Spain Brazil Mexico India USA Other Total
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment - 1,256,266 12,299 435 36,991| 248129| 188,076| 1,742,196
Infangible assets = Goodwill - 55,520 - - - - - 55,520
Intangible assets — Other - 102,055 457 868 733,851 874,347 1,732 -| 2,169,853
Financial Investments - 47 117 586 10,183 2,736 10,638 71,270
Trade and other receivables 62,769 18,078 | 1,557,874 64 168,776 2,997 137 1,810,795
Deferred income tax assets - 136,423 56,279 14,028 501 2,645 2,134 212,010
Derivative financial instruments - - - - = - - -
62,768 1,615,459 | 2,085,016 758,561 1,083,351 255,503 200,985 6,061,644
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventaries - 6,200 753 4 - - - 6,857
Trade and other receivables 338,607 44 927 265,186 13,275 111,026 991 14,267 788,279
Derivative financial instruments - - 2,242 - - - - 2,242
Financial investments - B - 15,850 20,136 - - 35,586
Cash and cash aquivalents 30,563 134,776 140,802 20,978 19,412 3,771 6,053 356,355
369,170 185,203 408,983 50,107 150,574 4,762 20,320 1,189,819
Total assets 431,938 1,801,362 | 2,493,999 808,668 | 1,233,925| 260,265| 221,305| 7,251,463
LIABILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings - 940,279 | 1,031,386 576,953 655,319 | 148,202 | 162110| 3,514,249
Derivative financial instruments - 175,085 46,758 - 8,818 1,490 232,161
Dafarred income tax liabilities - 47172 34,865 4188 2,573 1,239 - 90,037
Provisions for other liabilities
and charges - 10,648 3,801 - - = 57 14,506
Trade and other payables 321,088 92,319 250,239 10 84,319 889 1,728 750,502
321,088 1,265,513 | 1,320,291 627,909 742,211 159,148 165,385 4,601,545
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables - 67,708 356,766 29,724 220,958 23,887 700 609,744
Current income tax liabilities - - - - - - - =
Borrowings - 38,200 346,430 7,306 97,655 3,533 11,852 504,976
Derivative financial instruments - 29,661 - - - - 469 30,130
Provisions for other liabilities
and charges - - 80,336 20 - - - 80,356
- 135,570 783,532 37,050 318,613 27,420 13,021 | 1,315,206
Total Liabilities 321,088 1,401,083 | 2,103,823 664,959 | 1,060,824 | 186,568 178.405 5,916,751
Total Equity 110,851 400,279 390,176 143,709 173,101 73,697 42,809 | 1,334,712

3.3  Expected cash-flows and liquidity position

The investment contributions to be performed by the Group to the projects are covered by the equity and expected project

finance cash flows.

Regarding to the Group's project financing arrangements (“Project finance"), repayments are mainly secured by cash flows
from the respective projects. In such cases, the Group hedges liquidity risk by ensuring that financing is long term and
structured on the basis of the forecast cash flows for each project. Accordingly, 87% of financing recognized at December
31, 2012 falls due after more than one year and 65% of the financing recognized at December 31, 2012 falls due after more

than five years.

The group expects that bridge loan facilities relating to prejects under construction will be converted into project finance

loans with long term maturities once the operation period begins.

Additionally, on February 28, 2013 the company Concesionaria Autopista Monterrey-Saltillo S.A. de C.V. has issued

42.000.000 bonds with par value of 100 Mexican pesos each, which amounts to 4.200.000 thousands Mexican pesos (US$

323,929 thousand). The bonds, which are designated in UDIS, will be amortized on 29th December 2037, and bears an
annual interest rate of 5,9%. At the same time the company has repaid and cancelled entirely the senior project finance it



had with Santander S.A. and has amortised partially the convertible subordinated loan it held with Fondo Nacional de
Infraestructura (Fonadin).

As regards the Group's liquidity position, management monitors the forecast liquidity based on expected cash flows.

Liquidity risk is managed on an overall, centralized basis by Group Treasury. This includes both managing cash from the
Group's recurring transactions (analysis and follow-up of debt maturities, collections, renewal and contracting of loans,
management of available credit lines, and temporary investment of cash surpluses) and managing the funds necessary to
undertake planned investments

The Group's capital management objectives consist of protecting its capacity to do business as a going concern in order to
obtain a return for shareholders and profits for other holders of equity instruments, as well as to maintain an optimal capital
structure and reduce cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group could adjust the amount of dividends payable to shareholders,
reimburse capital fo shareholders, issue new shares or sell shares to reduce debt.

Leverage ratio at December 31, 2012 is shown below:

December

31, 2012

Berrowings and Trade and other payables 4,537,747
Less financial investments related to borrowings (107,256)
Less: cash and cash equivalents (356,355)
Net debt 4,074,136
Equity (including non controlling interests) 1,334,712
Total capital 5,408,848
Leverage ratio (net debt / total capital) 75,32%

4, Expectations

Despite the current worldwide macroeconomic environment, the portfolio amounts point out to a reasonable and moderate
optimism about the coming fiscal year 2013 thanks mainly to group’s position in developed and emerging markets and the
characteristics of the projects with non-demand risk in some cases.

The Group mainly foresees to close the financing of Linhas de Xingu Transmissora de Energia, Linhas de Macapa
Transmissora de Energla, Jauru Transmisora de Energia and Linhas de Taubaté Transmissora de Energia which actually
have bridge loans that amount 313,618 thousand of dollars.

Likewise, another big challenge for 2013 is to finish the construction phase of projects of California and Puerto Rico and
Linhas de Xingt Transmissora de Energia, Linhas de Macapa Transmissora de Energia and WETT Wind Energy Texas.
Additionaly the tollroad NHE will open its 75% and the Group will continue working to obtain projects in the US, South
Africa, Australia, Japan and Golf Emirates.

5. General risks
Main risks and uncertainties identified by the group relate to:
- Finalizing the construction phase and entering into operation as expected in the business plans. Delays could arise
in certain projects, mainly due to causes attributable to different government bodies that may lead to a claim for

compensation whose exist could impact in the projects expected profitability.

- Obtaining the expected traffic levels for toll roads. The macroeconomic environment and other factors can influence
in achieving this objective.

- Potential regulatory changes for the Photovoltaic energy market in different countries could impact in the expected
profitability of the projects.



6. Risk management of financial instruments

The activities carried out by Group companies are exposed to various financial risks. The policies developed by Isolux
Infrastructure Netherlands, B.V concerning these risks are based on the establishment of hedges for exchange and interest

rate risks.

At 31 December 2012, the Group has entered into interest rate swaps with financial entities. The following interest rate

swaps were in force:

Fixed Variable
Contract Final interest interest rate

Name date maturity Notional value " rate (paid) | (charged)
Bank loan Wett Holding 31/08/2011 31/03/2016 19,182 thousand USD 1,96% Libor
Bank loan Wett Wind Energy 02/08/2011 31/03/2016 115,093 thousand USD 1.91% Libor
Bank loan Concesionaria Saltillo 2,290,177 thousand
Monterrey 30/05/2007 30/056/2025 mexican peso 8,20% TIE*
Bank loan Sociedad Concesionaria
Autovia A-4 01/08/2008 16/06/2025 57,315 thousand euro 5,05% Euribor
Bank loan Concesionaria Perote- 3,745,713 thousand
Xalapa 13/02/2008 14/01/2022 mexican peso 8,20% TIE*
Syndicated loan GTS from NG
Banco 22/12/2008 31/12/2026 39,014 thousand euro 3,96% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from BBVA 15/07/2008 311212027 102,986 thousand euro 5,09% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from BBVA 15/09/2008 31/12/2027 29,870 thousand euro 4.75% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from BBVA 15/09/2008 31/12/2027 107,401 thousand euro 4,78% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from BBVA 28/11/2008 31M12/2027 6,414 thousand euro 4,33% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from BBVA 28/11/2008 31/12/2027 62,167 thousand euro 4 11% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from BBVA 28/11/2008 31M2/2027 131,006 thousand euro 4.42% Eurlbor
Syndicated loan GTS from BBVA 28/11/2008 | 31/12/2027 8,694 thousand euro 4,29% Euribor
Loan GTS from La Calxa 18/06/2009 18/06/2021 8,694 thousand euro 4,08% Euribor
Santander loan GTS 04/06/2009 04/12/2023 6,328 thousand euro 4,00% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from Banesto 11/01/2011 20/12/2023 3,409 thousand euro 3,45% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from Banesto 11/03/2011 20M12/2023 1,838 thousand euro 3,69% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from Banesto 11/01/2011 20M12/2023 4,739 thousand euro 3,45% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from Banesto 2211212010 20/12/2023 21,132 thousand euro 3,54% Euribor
Bankia loan GTS 18/03/2010 23/04/2026 2,017 thousand euro 3,65% Euribor
Raggio di Puglia loan GTS 25/01/2012 29/06/2029 14,777 thousand euro 2,73% Euribor




Fixed Variable
Contract Final interest Interest rate

Name date maturity Notional value rate (paid) | (charged)
Bank loan Weit Holding 31/08/2011 31/03/2016 19,182 thousand USD 1,896% Libor
Bank loan Wett Wind Energy 02/08/2011 31/03/2016 115,093 thousand USD 1,91% Libor
Bank loan Concesionaria Saltillo 2,290,177 thousand
Monterrey 30/05/2007 30/05/2025 mexican peso 8,20% TIE*
Bank loan Sociedad Concesionaria
Autovia A-4 01/08/2008 16/06/2025 57,315 thousand euro 5.05% Euribor
Bank loan Conceslonaria Perote- 3,745,713 thousand
Xalapa 13/02/2008 14/01/2022 mexican peso 8,20% TIE*
Syndicated loan GTS from NG
Banco 22/12/2008 31/12/2026 39,014 thousand euro 3,96% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from BBVA 15/Q7/2008 | 31M12/2027 102,986 thousand euro 5,09% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from BBVA 15/09/2008 311212027 29,870 thousand euro 4,75% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS fram BBVA 15/09/2008 3112/2027 107,401 thousand euro 4,78% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from BBVA 28/11/2008 31/12/2027 6,414 thousand euro 4 33% Euribor
Syndicated loan GT5 from BBVA 28/11/2008 311212027 62,167 thousand euro 4,11% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from BBVA 28/11/2008 31/12/2027 131,006 thousand eurg 4,42% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from BBVA 28/11/2008 31/12/2027 8,684 thousand euro 4,29% Euribor
Loan GTS from La Caixa 18/06/2009 18/06/2021 8,694 thousand euro 4,09% Euribor
Santander loan GTS 04/06/2009 04/12/2023 6,328 thousand euro 4,00% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from Banesto 11/01/2011 20M12/2023 3,409 thousand euro 3.45% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from Banesto 11/03/2011 20/12/2023 1,938 thousand euro 3,69% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from Banesto 11/01/2011 20/12/2023 4,739 thousand euro 3,45% Euribor
Syndicated loan GTS from Banesto 2211272010 20/12/2023 21,132 thousand euro 3,54% Euribor
Bankia loan GTS 18/03/2010 23/04/2026 2,017 thousand euro 3.65% Euribor
Raggio di Puglia loan GTS 25/01/2012 | 29/06/2029 14,777 thousand euro 2,73% Euribor
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Independent auditor's report

To the General Meeting of Shareholders of Isolux Infrastructure Netherlands B.V.

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the period 13 June 2012 to
31 December 2012 as set out on pages 3 to 100 which are part of the consolidated financial statements
of Isolux Infrastructure Netherlands B.V., Amsterdam, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2012, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the period from 13 June 2012 to 31
December 2012 and the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Board of directors’ responsibility

The board of directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and with Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and for the preparation of the
directors’ report in accordance with Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, Furthermore, the board
of directors is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on
Auditing. This requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the eircumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the board of directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V., Fascinatio Boulevard 350, 3065 WB Rotterdam, P.O. Box 8800,
3009 AV Rotterdam, The Netherlands
T: +31(0) 88 792 0o 10, F: +31 (0) 88 792 95 33, wiww.pe.nl

'PWC' is Ihe brand under which PricewalerhouseCoopers Accountants N.V. (Chamber of Commarce 341B0285), PricewaterhouseCoapers Belastingadviseurs N.V.
(Ghambar of Commerce 34180284), PricewatarhouseCaapers Advisory N V. (Chamber of Commerca 34130287), PricawaterhouseCoopers Compliance Services BV
(Chambar of Commeree 51414406), PricewaterhauseCoopars Pensians, Actuarial & Inaurance Services B.V. (Chamber of Commarce 54226368),
PricawaterhouseCoapers 8.V, (Chambar of Commerce 34180289) and olher companies operate and provide sarvices. Thase services ara governed by General Tarms
and Conditians (‘algamena vaorwaarden'), which inciude previsions regarding aur liability. Purchases by lhase camparias are govemed by General Terms and Condilions
of Purchasa (‘'algemene inkoopvoorwaarden'), At www.pwe.nl mare detailed information on theas companias i5 avallable, including these General Terms and Conditions
and Ihe General Terms and Conditions of Purchase, which have also been filed at ha Amsterdam Chamber of Commerce.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion with respect to the consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of Isolux Infrastructure Netherlands B.V. as at 31 December 2012, and of its
consolidated result and its consolidated cash flows for the period from 13 June 2012 to 31 December
2012 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Section 2: 393 sub 5 at e and f of the Dutch Civil Code, we
have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the directors’ report, to the extent
we can assess, has been prepared in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of this Code, and whether the
information as required under Section 2: 392 sub 1 at b-h has been annexed. Further we report that
the directors’ report, to the extent we can assess, is consistent with the consolidated financial
statements as required by Section 2: 391 sub 4 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Rotterdam, 29 May 2013
PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountant
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